VI.

VII.

Town of Mount Desert
Board of Selectmen
Agenda

Regular Meeting
Monday, June 21, 2021
Meeting Room; Northeast Harbor
Public can now attend meeting in person. Meetings will continue to
be offered via Zoom see pg. 2 for connection details

Call to order at 6:00 p.m.

Executive Session

A.

Pursuant to 1. M.R.S. 405 (6) (D) Labor Negotiations

Minutes

A.

Approval of Minutes of May 27, 2021

Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations

A.

D.

Appointment of Genya Grover as Assistant Harbormaster/ Office Manager. At a rate
of $23.38 per hour probationary rate and a 5% increase after successful completion
of six- month probation period.

Accept Resignation of Justin Kelley, from the position of MEO2, effective June 18,
2021.

Consideration of Public Works Director Tony Smith’s recommendation of the
appointment of Aaron Lichtenstein as a summer helper in the town’s Buildings &
Grounds and Parks & Cemeteries Division of the Public Works Department for the
2021 summer season effective June 22, 2021, at an hourly rate of $15.00 per hour.
Annual Board and Committee Appointments

Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.)

“-I OmMmMOUOwWZ>

Chamber of Commerce 2021 Agreement (Term July 1, 2021--June 30, 2022)
Neighborhood House 2021 Agreement (Term July 1, 2021--June 30, 2022)C.
Ticket Booth Sales 2021 Agreements (Term July 1, 2021--June 30, 2022)
Selectmen Meeting Schedule 2021-2022

Holiday Schedule 2021-2022

Thank you note from Open Table MDI for donation

Acknowledgement to Police Dispatch, Marie Overlock, for superb handling of water
rescue call

Hancock County Commissioners Special Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2021
Bypass notice — Municipal Waste (Residential)

Thank you note from Todd Mydland for Street Light Replacement

Selectmen’s Reports

Unfinished Business

A.

Consideration of accepting DEP StreamSmart road crossing grant funds in the
amount of $125,000 to be used towards replacing and upgrading the culvert system in
the Beech Hill Cross Road through which Denning Brook flows and authorizing
Public Works Director Tony Smith to execute the contract with DEP on behalf of the
Town


jbuchanan
Highlight


Board of Selectmen Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021

B. Consideration be given to Items Numbered 1 thru 4 in Public Works Director Tony
Smith’s memo to Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Jr. dated June 17, 2021, related to
procurement of professional engineering services, and paying for the same, related to
the Beech Hill Cross Road StreamSmart culvert replacement project for Denning
Brook.

VIl New Business

A. Request from Harbor Master Lemoine for authorization to pay for replacement of
Northeast Harbor Public Dock mooring chains, inspections on the Commercial Dock,
pile zinc’s and mooring float 300 by Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for $4,101.20, which
are critical to extending the useful life of Harbor assets. The Northeast Harbor
Mooring/Floats CIP 6410100-24681 has a balance of $86,346.81.

B. Recommendation from Harbor Committee to raise the Seafood Buyers Permit from
$1,000.00 to $5,000.00 per year. This would be done to keep Mount Desert in line
with the other local Harbors. Requesting approval for this rate change for the 2022
season.

C. Independent Accountants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures from James,
Wadman, C.P.A.

D. Consideration of authorizing Public Works Director Tony Smith to solicit competitive
bids for Town purchase of a new 2022 plow truck and gear in conformance with both
the Town purchasing policy and the capital improvement plan.

IX Other Business
A. Consider extending the expiration dates on 2020 clam licenses due to COVID-19
disruptions.
B. Such other business as may be legally conducted

X Treasurer’s Warrants
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below:

| Town Invoices | AP2171 | 06/22/2021 | $606,484.63 |

B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown
below:

State Fees & PR Benefits | AP2169 06/09/2021 $12,903.06

State Fees & PR Benefits | AP2170 06/16/2021 $3,344.75

State Fees & PR Benefits

Town Payroll PR2128 06/11/2021 $116,226.49

Total

C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown below:
School Invoices

School Payroll

School Payroll #26 06/18/2021 $219,259.93
Total
| Grand Total | $958,218.86
VI,  Adjournment

The next scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, July 6, 2021- Via Zoom.
Page 2 of 3



Board of Selectmen Meeting Agenda June 21, 2021

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. You can call in
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link. You will
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEYQT09

Meeting I1D: 248 566 175
Password: 919872

One tap mobile
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago)
+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York)

Dial by your location

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 646 876 9923 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose)

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

Meeting ID: 248 566 175
Password: 919872

Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BOS meeting now has a password.

Page 3 0of 3


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09

Board of Selectmen

Managers Memo

Location: Meeting Room Town Hall Northeast Harbor and by Zoom
Date: June 21, 2021

Time: Executive Session 6: 00 p.m.- regular meeting to follow
Agenda details:

I. Call to order 6:00 p.m.- Executive session Statutory
Citation 1 M.R.S 405(6) (D)- Labor negotiations

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS
None Scheduled

ITI. Post Public Hearing
None Scheduled

IV. Minutes

a. Approve Minutes of May 21, 2021

V. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations

a. Appointment of Genya Grover as Assistant Harbormaster/Office
Manager at a rate of $23.38 per hour probationary rate and a 5%
increase following a successful probationary period of six months.

b. Accept resignation of Justin Kelley from the position of MEO2,
effective June 18, 2021.



c. Consider appointment of Aaron Lichtenstein as a summer helper in the
town’s Buildings and Grounds 7 Parks and Cemeteries Division of the
Public Works Department for the summer season effective June 22,
2021 at an hourly rate of $15.00 per hour.

d. Annual Board and Committee Appointments

VI. Consent Agenda

a. Chamber of Commerce 2021 Agreement (Term July 1, 2021-June 30,

2022

b. Neighborhood House 2021 Agreement (Term July 1, 2021-June
30,2022)

c. C.ticket Booth Sales 2021 Agreement (Term July 1, 2021-June 30,
2022)

d. Selectmen Meeting Schedule 2021-2022

e. Holiday Schedule 2021-2022

f. Thank you note from Open Table MDI for donation
g

. Acknowledgement to Police Dispatch, Marie Overlock, for superb
handling of water rescue call.

h. Hancock County special Minutes of June 1, 2021
i. Bypass notice- Municipal Waste (Residential)
j. Thank you from Todd Mydland for streetlight replacement.

V11. Selectmen’s Reports

V111. Unfinished Business

a. Consideration of accepting DEP StreamSmart road crossing grant funds in the amount of
$125,000 to be used towards replacing and upgrading the culvert system in the Beech Hill
Cross Road through which Denning Brook flows and authorizing Public Works Director
Tony Smith to execute the contract on behalf of the Town.

A Possible Motion to: Accept a StreamSmart crossing grant in the amount of

$125,000 to be used towards replacing and upgrading the culvert system in
the Beech Hill Cross Road through which Denning Brook flows.

Page 2



b. Consideration be given to Items numbered 1-4 in Public Works Director Tony Smith’s
memo to Town Manager Durlin Lunt Jr., dated June 17, 2021, related to procurement of
professional engineering services, and paying for the same. Related to the Beech hill Cross
Road StreamSmart culvert replacement project for Denning Brook.

A Possible Motion to:

1. Retain the Services of VHB Engineering Services in the amount of
$35,000.

2. Use $10,000 of the DEP grant funds towards the $35,000 VHB costs
leaving a balance of $25,000 for engineering costs.

3. Use $25,000 plus a contingency of $5,000 for unforeseen
circumstances to be drawn and spent from public works Account
Number 4050100-24573 with a current balance of $155,557.

4. Authorize Public Works Director Tony Smith to sign the proposal
with VHB on behalf of the Town.

IX. New Business

c. Memo from finance Director Jake Wright. James Wadman C.P.A. furnished Independent
Auditors Report detailing procedures on cash audit. The agreed upon procedures have been
applied and the information appears to be accurate.

Informational only no action required.

d. Memo from Harbormaster John Lemoine requesting authorization to pay for replacement
of NEH Public Dock mooring chains, inspections on the public dock, pile zinc’s and
mooring float 300 to Alvah B. Barge Service in the amount of $4,101.20 which are critical to
extending the useful life of Harbor Assets.

A possible Motion to pay for repairs to Northeast Harbor Public Dock
mooring chains, inspection on the Public Dock, pile zincs and Mooring float

Page 3



X.

300 in the amount of $4,101.20 to Alvah B. Barge Service from the Northeast
Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410100-24681 leaving a balance of $86,346.10.

Consider the recommendation from the Harbor Committee to raise the Seafood Buyer’s
Permit from $1,000 per year to $5,000 per year to be consistent with the other local
harbors. See memo from Harbormaster John Lemoine dated June 11, 2021, in
your packet.

A Possible Motion to raise the Seafood Buyer’s report from $1,000 to $5,000 to
conform to the other local harbors.

Request authorization to solicit bids for purchase of a 2022 plow truck, dump body, and associated
plow equipment. See memo from Public Works Director Tony Smith. This will replace a 2012 model
with 59,000 miles. Purchase is to be made from the Public Works Equipment Reserve Account
40501100-24500 with a current balance of $289,941.

A possible motion to: Solicit competitive bids for a 2022 plow truck, dump
body, with associated plow equipment. The purchase for this truck will be
made from Public Works Equipment Reserve Account 4050100-24500

Consider the appoint of Genya Grover for assistant Harbormaster/Office Manager at a rate
of $23.58 with a 5% increase after the successful completion of a six -month probationary
period.

Other Business

Page 4



a. Consider extending the expiration dates on 2020 clam licenses due to COVID-19
disruptions. See memo from Town Manager Durlin Lunt to Board of Selectmen

A Possible Motion to: Extend the clam licenses due to expire on June 30,
2021 to June 30, 2022

Page 5



MINUTES



—
OO0 DAhWN -

e e e N )
wn A W -

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 1

Town of Mount Desert

Selectboard Special Meeting Minutes
Thursday, May 27, 2021

Location: Zoom Meeting
This Meeting was held via remote access.

Selectboard Members Present: Chair John Macauley, Martha Dudman, Matt Hart, Wendy
Littlefield, Geoff Wood

Town Officials Present: Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Public
Works Director Tony Smith

Members of the public were also in attendance.

I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m.
Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:30PM.

I1. New Business
A. Discussion on whether to request the Municipal Review Committee to call a special to
review the changes associated with the sale of the Hampden based Coastal Resources of
Maine waste solid waste treatment plant to a new company.
Chair Macauley stated the meeting was called to discuss whether to request the
Municipal Review Committee (MRC) to call a special meeting to review changes
associated with the sale of the Hampden based Coastal Resources of Maine waste solid
waste treatment facility to new purchaser Delta Thermal Energy (DTE).

Municipal Review Committee Executive Director Michael Carroll referred to the notice
the Town received regarding the Fundamental Matters, meaning points in the waste
supply or lease agreement that either party has requested to change during negotiations.
Requested changes require MRC member notification. The matters are:

e Option to purchase the land - The current MRC lease agreement allows for the
facility owner to purchase the land at the end of the initial term. In this type of
acquisition lenders want the option of possible land ownership as part of the
collateral. Land sale cannot happen until DTE shows long-term reliability and
stable operation of the facility for nine consecutive months. July and August must
be included in the nine consecutive months. No sale will occur for some time,
and DTE is not required to purchase.

e Rebates — Currently gross revenue must hit a minimum of 16 million per year
before rebates occur. MRC hopes to replace rebate language in the agreement
with a shared tipping fee system. Shared tipping fees start once the nine-month
performance test is achieved. At that point DTE will be required to refund back a
specific dollar amount per ton.

e Terms — there are two agreements regarding terms, making this fundamental matter
numbers 3 and 4. DTE is requesting to reset the clock on the current natural



SO0 DA WN =

BB DA A DDA WLWLWLWWLWWLWWWRNRNDINDRNDRNDDRNDNDDNDRN — —— o — — —— —
Ul-lkwt\)'—‘O\OOO\lO\Ul-bWN—O\OOO\IO\MAwN—O\OOO\IO\U\J}wN—‘

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 2

waste supply agreement and also the lease agreement to a full 15 years to provide
DTE the chance to recoup their investment. Both agreements are approximately a
year and a half under way.

If the nine-month period is not satisfactory, the MRC will not exercise the option to
purchase the land. Ms. Dudman asked if there were other repercussions if DTE is found
to be unsatisfactory. Would the MRC remain tied to this company? Consultant for the
MRC George Aronson stated there is an outside date in the agreement. DTE will be in
default if they fail to achieve sustainable, stable performance that meets diversion rates
and other provisions of the agreement by that date. This makes it a requirement that DTE
perform as indicated in the agreement, meet the diversion targets mandated by the DEP,
and stay in compliance with the existing set of permits.

Should DTE go into default there are options regarding how to proceed, depending on the
type of default and what is necessary to repair it. If the default is due to technical
performance the lenders can step in to cure the performance issue. If the lenders fail to
act to cure performance issues, then MRC can terminate the site lease.

If DTE has already purchased the land before going into default, there are protections

within the site lease regarding the operation. The MRC’s goal is to retain protection as if
the MRC were the landlord, even if DTE owns the land. A number of provisions
regarding DTE’s performance transfer from the site lease to the Master Waste Supply
agreement if the option to purchase the land is exercised. As an example, if DTE is not in
compliance with the DEP permit the MRC will have the ability to enforce it under the
Master Waste Supply Agreement, even if the site lease is terminated. Additionally, the
MRC will have enforcement authority for maintaining diversion requirements.

Phil Lichtenstein asked about ownership of the building and equipment on the land. Mr.
Aronson noted the building and equipment are still under the technical ownership of
Coastal Resources of Maine (CRM) which is in default, putting the property into
receivership. Receivership allows the bond holders to sell the building and equipment to
DTE. The MRC has never owned the building or equipment. If there is a default
situation with DTE, then the MRC will negotiate to see what the next step is. Should this
occur there are some things that give the MRC leverage:

e The MRC represents the largest customer group. The current bond holders
understand - and presumably the lenders moving forward will understand - that
the facility is worth more as a going concern with the customer than as used
equipment and scrap metal. This incentivizes DTE to negotiate with the MRC to
maintain the facility’s value as a going concern. To do this the facility must
comply with the permits, diversion requirements and contractual obligations, and
meet all the obligations for oversight as well as additional provisions for MRC
approval. DTE is incentivized to perform the way the contract is written.

e Extra levels of oversight have been incorporated, so the MRC is more involved in
the facility.



Pk
SOOI WN KA WN—

B PA DDA DUWWWWWWUWWWWRNRNNNDNNDNNDNDDN = —— = ——
AN PHA W, OOVWOONANNIAE,WNN—L,OOVONIAANUNDIDEWN—R,OOVOLONNONWUNDA WN —

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 3

e The MRC is a Maine entity. They have relationships with the DEP, suppliers, and
the municipalities. These relationships are important to any successful endeavor.

Mr. Aronson asserted that the best way for members to manage MSW with a maximum
diversion rate from landfill and incineration is to reopen this facility. This relationship
with DTE is the best chance for that to happen.

Mr. Lichtenstein believed having contractual agreements and permits in place should
make such an operation attractive to any buyer. He asked if a nine-month performance
record is enough to feel comfortable handing over the land.

Mr. Aronson believed the purchase value was approximately $7 million. With regard to
the question of nine months, Mr. Aronson felt there were a couple of points to consider:
o The length of nine months is the outcome of negotiation and the best the MRC was
able to get.
o The facility was at one point up and running, providing insight into its operational
strengths and weaknesses. There is some knowledge of what needs to be done.

Regarding operation, improvement is needed in the back end of the processing. Data has
been monitored since the first truckload arrived in April 2019 through suspension of
operation in May 2020. The facility has unique elements, including a back-end process
oriented toward pulp production. It’s believed the pulp production operation might be a
good potential partner to some of the existing mills in Maine. There are other operations
on the East coast similar to this facility that have been operating successfully. The MRC
is in contact with other facilities.

Mr. Carroll clarified the nine months does not start when the deal is closed. DTE must
provide a two-week notice to the MRC regarding when they would like the clock to start.
Two perfectly operating weeks are required before the clock can start on the nine months.
There are provisions throughout the agreement regulating ramp-up time and when waste
needs to hit the floor. The MRC, just as the Municipalities, want the facility up and
running. Mr. Aronson noted this was Phase 1. Phase 2 and 3 include additional
beneficiation facilities on site.

Mr. Lichtenstein felt comfortable with the front end of the process. He voiced concerns
regarding the back end of the process. He pointed out the last operator had difficulties
with the back end of the operation.

Mr. Lichtenstein recalled the original Zoom meeting with DTE. They suggested at that
time that sludge from out of State might be brought for processing. Mr. Lichtenstein felt
this was an unpopular suggestion among Municipalities. DEP permits would be required
for bringing in out of State materials. Mr. Aronson noted the MRC is equally concerned
about the possibility. The document language is clear that the facility will open using the
existing technology. Looking further down the road, questions could arise regarding next
steps and expanding the campus. Provisions in the site lease preclude out of State waste.
There could be a question regarding how enforceable they are. It’s been the MRC’s



SOOI WNPSAWN —

B PEA DDA DAL DWLWLWWWWWLWWWNNDNEEMNRNDRNDNDNDN — — ———————
AU BRIV, OV NIANANNPAEWN—A,OOOIAANDEWRN—-OO0JN WD WRN —

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 4

intention that this facility serves Central Maine. Economically speaking, there’s ample
material in Maine to meet the facility’s need, including wastewater treatment sludge
should the facility get to that point at some future time.

Chair Macauley asked what percentage of the solid waste made it through the
fermentation process and into methane gas.

Mr. Aronson noted methane production is part of the back-end difficulties. Methane
production was lower than originally anticipated. Methane is recovered from organics.
That part of the processing module never got to the point of fully functioning. Methane
is also recovered from the pulping process. The low production has been attributed to the
plastics in the waste stream. Plans are in place for improving plastic recovery. There are
relationships with potential customers of the product, and there is a relationship with the
UMO chemical engineering department and their product research program. If the
process is successful, the operation will be able to create from mixed paper a pulp or
chemical product, thus increasing its value. The hope is to work on achieving higher
levels of diversion.

Mr. Aronson explained that one of the objectives moving forward is to retain the
incentives for Towns to move forward with waste reduction. Solid Waste requires long
term commitments to make the capital necessary for operation. There is a natural tension
between these two drives. No individual Municipality has a delivery guarantee. Delivery
guarantee is pooled among all members of the MRC. Commercial waste coming from
outside the MRC community counts toward the MRC delivery guarantee. Additionally,
the operator is obligated to take more waste if they have the capacity. If a Town like
Mount Desert reduces its waste, it makes room for the operator to take in more waste at a
higher tipping fee. This incentivizes DTE to work with the MRC on waste reduction.
Additionally, the original rebate structure has been revised. The complicated sharing
formula was replaced with DTE paying the MRC by the ton. If the MRC reduces its
waste, then DTE makes a smaller payment. This incentivizes DTE to work with the
MRC on waste reduction.

Chair Macauley asked Mr. Carroll to clarify the role of the MRC as the relationship
moves forward.

Mr. Carroll explained that monthly stakeholder meetings between the MRC and DTE are
part of the agreement. DTE must share their operational plan with the MRC, and the
MRC approves the plan and any changes made to it. The MRC will receive reports on
waste coming in and product going out. DTE has been required to get a performance
bond in case the MRC is required to step in at some point. This will provide available
funds to keep the plant operating. Mr. Carroll confirmed the MRC will continue in the
role of collective bargaining agent and mediator.

Mr. Aronson added that the MRC has required DTE to require its representative and
general manager to live in Maine and be based at the plant. The MRC has been involved
in the hiring process for the general manager.



—
OOV oONONWN A WN—

B A DA PA,PDUWWWUWWWUWWWWNENNNDNNDDNONNDNDDND S === — =
AN PHA WML OVOONAANUNMPAWINPL,OOVONANANUNPE,WN—R, OOV WM B WN—

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 5

Mr. Hart mentioned that the previous operator had issues with permitting delays,
specifically with the briquettes they intended to produce. He asked the status of that
permit. Mr. Carroll confirmed that permit is in place. The MRC has been working
closely with the DEP, and all permits are in place and have been preserved. The DEP has
assured the MRC that those permits can be transferred to the new operator.

Mr. Hart believed the Selectboard’s responsibility, based on the agenda, is to review the
requested changes to the contract and decide if there is an issue with any of the issues in
any combination. Those changes include:

¢ Option to purchase the land

o Change in the rebate structure

e 2-year extension of the Master Waste Supply Agreement

o The site lease
Mr. Hart asked if any of the Board members had concerns about any of the changes.

Ms. Dudman noted there has been concern voiced in the community. To consider those
fundamentals, the Board must have an understanding of the overall setup. Mr. Hart
agreed. However, if it comes to calling a membership meeting of the MRC, the Town
has agreed such a meeting would be called only to address the changes proposed. He
cautioned that it’s easy to stray from these proposed changes.

Chair Macauley believed it went beyond the four points. He was concerned with rumors
that the MRC would at some point withdraw from their role overseeing the process and
providing management. Ms. Dudman agreed; she would not feel comfortable with the
option to potentially purchase the land without some oversight of that process.

Resident Caroline Prior believed a major issue to be the buyer of the operation, Delta
Thermo Energy, and their suitability. She voiced concern about the possibility of land
sale and the transfer of the solid waste agreement to the operator. Who is DTE, who is
behind DTE, and what is their track record? These questions need answers before a 15-
year, multi-million-dollar agreement is signed. There are concerns about the integrity of
this company.

Mr. Aronson stated that the MRC’s preference would be to have the original operator in
place diverting 80% of the waste from landfill. Instead, that company defaulted on their
loans, and the lenders are now in receivership and in control of the facility. It is the
lender’s decision who to sell to. The MRC is not the owner and has no leverage on the
lender’s decision. Like it or not, the lenders are moving forward with DTE. The MRC’s
options are to either find a way to work with DTE or to terminate the relationship, at
which point the facility would likely be liquidated and sold for scrap.

Ms. Prior agreed it was a desperate situation. She believed the MRC was shirking their
responsibility by passing blame to the lenders. She detected the MRC’s enthusiasm for
the qualifications of DTE. Mr. Aronson stated that he has spoken only in reference to the
deal. The MRC'’s intention has been to negotiate a deal with controls, protections, and



SO 00NNV A WN =

B A DB BEPLADWWWLLWLWLWWWWLWWRRNNDNDRNNNDRNDNRN — ——————— —
QAUNPAUWNOOVWOIANANNDERLWNNROOOIANAUNAEWN—~OOVOIANWN D WN —

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 6

requirements in place that will meet the needs of the members. If the operation can be
made to succeed it will be an asset as a waste diversion facility in Maine. The MRC
began sponsoring the facility in 2013 as a way to divert waste from landfills and
incineration to the greatest extent possible. Under the circumstances, Mr. Aronson felt
the current situation is the best deal the MRC could get. He’s negotiated with many solid
waste operators and believes it best to find a deal with incentives, necessary control
protections, and one which provides the services desired. The MRC believes that is
where the situation stands.

DTE has been working toward this agreement for several months. They contacted the
bondholders in July of 2020. They’ve exhibited evidence of commitment and persistence
since that time moving towards a deal. They’ve assisted with support in winterization and
securing the facility.

Ms. Prior requested Mr. Aronson speak to DTE’s experience in terms of the operation of
such a facility. Ms. Prior asserted that DTE’s resume is fraudulent and asked about the
MRC’s comfort level with DTE. Mr. Aronson stated the MRC is comfortable proceeding
in a deal with protections in place. This is the best chance, in the MRC’s opinion, to
achieve the goal of managing MSW and reopen the facility.

Ms. Prior asked what the Town’s exposure was in the deal. Manager Lunt stated the
Town is a member of the MRC. There are 115 MRC member communities. The Town
pays dues. There are provisions regarding withdrawal from the organization if it is
deemed in the Town’s best interest. The Town’s exposure is the same as other member
Towns in Maine. Manager Lunt felt the greater risk to the community is the chance the
facility could be liquidated.

Ms. Dudman requested an overview of the terms of the 15-year lease. What happens if
the facility does not work, or if DTE goes into default? Can either party get out of the
lease?

Mr. Carroll answered that depending on the severity of the default, the MRC can put
DTE on notice of default.

Mr. Wood asked that if something happens during the length of the 15-year lease and the
Town is unhappy with the way the MRC handles a default or other performance issues,
does the Town have the option to withdraw from the MRC at any time without penalty?

Mr. Aronson stated that the Town of Mount Desert does not have an option to withdraw
from the MRC. If at some point during the term the Town decides to send their waste
elsewhere, they would be in default of the joinder agreement. What would happen at that
point would depend on the circumstances. The Town can contact the MRC with
problems, and the MRC will try to solve those problems. The Town has some flexibility.
There is no specific delivery obligation. A swap can likely be arranged if another Town
were interested in joining. The MRC’s goal is to meet the needs of their members. But
ceasing delivery of waste to the site without notice would result in default.



o
SO0 0NNV B WN —

A PA DDA D PDPDUWWWWWWWWWWRNRNNINDNONNDNNDNDDNDPE == =
A UNHARWN—=,OOVONAANNPEAWNODL,OOVXNNANANNDE WO, OOV WD —

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 7

Mr. Hart added that with regard to the joinder agreement, the Board was in favor of it
when the Town became a member of the MRC.

Ms. Prior stated that the purpose of this meeting is to request the MRC hold a true public
meeting. Other MRC meetings are structured so public comment is limited and kept
under time constraints. Ms. Prior hopes the Town will facilitate for a true exchange
between the MRC communities. The MRC should have no problem with such a meeting
in the spirit of democratic process, in light of the changes being considered, and the fact
that the Town is unable to get out of the agreement. Ms. Prior hopes the Town will find
it appropriate to ask for a public meeting. In the face of a 15-year contract, such a
meeting would be time well spent.

Mr. Carroll stated that the MRC has had several special meetings. All meetings are
advertised. Members are able to ask questions at those meetings. Representatives of the
operation have been in attendance at two of the meetings.

It was noted that in order for a meeting of all members to occur, 60,000 tons must be
represented as supporting such a meeting. Mr. Carroll noted the Town of Bar Harbor,
representing 5,000 tons, has voted to request a member meeting. Bar Harbor is the only
Town to have done so.

Mr. Hart reiterated that the changes proposed to the four fundamental matters stated are
the reasons for which a member meeting can be called. He asked again if any members
of the Board had issue specific to any of those matters. Concerns outside of the
fundamental matters can be addressed through questions and emails to the MRC or
discussion with MRC representatives. Selectboard members can participate in meetings
the MRC holds.

Ms. Littlefield agreed. She has no issue with the proposed changes. She’s worked to
educate herself on the issue, and while there are concerns, those concerns do not fall
under the reasons for calling a meeting.

Mr. Hart believed part of the delay in the process has been due to the MRC’s due
diligence efforts. If a problem arises, the Town has the ability to discuss them through
Town officials, or MRC representatives. The Town will not have to try to work directly
with the operator. Everyone’s opinion is genuine; however, the four fundamental matters
stated are the reason for holding a meeting.

Mr. Wood wondered if this was an opportunity to call a meeting to review the whole
process. Is the Board behaving responsibly if they pass on such an opportunity?

Mr. Hart believed the agreement allows for a meeting to be called when changes are
considered. The concerns stated so far are not with the four fundamental matters. Mr.
Wood pointed out that part of the question is whether the company will be able to live up
to the changes.



SO XNV A WN —

B BEA DDA DA DD WLWWWLWWWWWERNNDNDRNNRNDNDRNDDNDN — — ——_——————
AUNPEAWN—,OOVWONANANNEAEWINN—~OOVWOIAOANUNHAEWN—=OOVOI WD WRN —

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 8

Public Works Director Tony Smith recommends the acceptance of the four fundamental
matters. Resetting the Term limit provides DTE with the same timeframe the previous
operator was given, plus the benefit of the previous operator’s learning curve and a larger
funding source. Regarding the rebate structure, the one suggested is more
straightforward. With regard to the land purchase option, this was requested by the
lenders. Director Smith pointed out the MRC bylaws state a special meeting is called
specifically to address changes to the fundamental matters. Such a meeting is not
intended for a discussion such as this one.

Chair Macauley agreed the four points are clear. His hope was to bring some clarity to
the Town. He thought a meeting with MRC might help do so.

Ms. Prior reiterated her assertion that DTE’s resume is fraudulent. She challenged the
Public Works Director to name specific facilities and communities DTE has operated in.

Chair Macauley restated that the operation is in a foreclosure. The MRC and the Town
have no choice in who is allowed to buy it. The choice of the buyer is in the hands of the
bond holders. DTE is the buyer.

Director Smith felt the MRC was fortunate to be allowed to be involved with the sales
process. Mr. Carroll and Mr. Aronson have worked hard, and Director Smith trusts their
efforts. The Town was asked to participate. Every step taken in this sale was made with
the goal of protecting the MRC members. There are monthly meetings regarding the
situation at which the MRC and the DEP are in attendance.

MOTION: Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to request the Municipal
Review Committee to call a special meeting to review changes associated with the sale of
the Hampden based Coastal Resources of Maine solid waste handling and processing
plant to a new company.

Motion denied, 1-4 (Macauley, Hart, Dudman, and Littlefield opposed).

Mr. Wood explained that he has a lack of faith in the company purchasing the operation,
and their ability to adhere to any of the agreements. He wants more information. He
understands those who have spoken have worked hard and they’ve done everything they
can to put safeguards in place. The MRC must approve any operational changes, but if
this company chooses to ignore that oversight, there is no substantive recourse. This
company has a less than perfect history of following rules and telling the truth.

Ms. Dudman agreed with Mr. Wood. She believed the MRC to be doing the best job
possible with a bad situation.

Ms. Littlefield agreed it was a difficult situation. She felt she had to put trust in the MRC
to do their best.

Ms. Dudman thanked those for attending the meeting.



P
SOOI WNh WND—

DO =t et ek ek ek ek ek ek
SOV A WN—

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard
Minutes of May 27, 2021 - 9

Mr. Carroll noted the Board can always reach out to him. He’s been calling all members
since the notice of change went out. Mr. Aronson thanked those in attendance for their
input.

III.  Other Business
There was no Other Business.

IV.  Adjournment
MOTION: Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Hart seconding, adjournment.
Motion approved 5-0.

The Meeting adjourned at 7:46PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Wendy Littlefield



APPOINTMENTS
RECOGNITIONS
RESIGNATIONS



Town of Mount Desert
John LeMoine, Harbormaster
40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5737 Fax 207-276-5741
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org
Web Address www.mtdesert.org

MEMO

To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager
From: John LeMoine, Harbormaster
Re:  Deputy Harbormaster

Date: June 10, 2021

Durlin,

I would like to recommend the following individual listed below for the Assistant Harbormaster/
Office Manager position. Could you please place the following individual on the June 21, 2021
Board of Selectmen’s agenda for his approval.

Genya Grover @ $23.38 per hour probationary rate and a 5% increase after successful
completion of six month probation period.

Thank you,

John LeMoine
Harbormaster

C:\Users\jmcwain\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\GA Y SRQGX\Genya Grover.docx 6/14/21



Justin Kelley
109 Lakes Lane
Elisworth, ME 04605

June 7, 2021

Ben Jacobs

Town of Mount Desert
307 Sargeant Drive
Mount Desert, ME 04660

Dear Ben,

Please accept this as my official notice of resignation from the position of MEO2 at Town of Mount
Desert, effective two weeks from today, making my last day of employment June 18, 2021.

After careful consideration | have decided to resign in order to pursue another career opportunity that
will help me grow both personally and professionally. Working for the Town of Mount Desert has been
positive experience that has given me many opportunities to learn and grow, and | am very grateful to
have held the position.

I plan to work this week, June 7 — 13 and will be taking my scheduled vacation for June 14 — 18.

I am sorry for any inconvenience this may cause the town, however the position | am taking begins on
June 21, 2021.

Sincerely,

Justin Kelley

I (o/é /0704(



Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5743 Fax 207-276-5742
www.mtdesert.org director@mtdesert.org

MEMO

To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager

From: Tony Smith, Public Works Director

Re:  Buildings & Grounds and Parks & Cemeteries Summer Helper
Date: June 17, 2021

I recommend we hire Aaron Lichtenstein as a summer helper in our Buildings & Grounds and
Parks & Cemeteries Division of the Public Works Department for the 2021 summer season. He
worked for us before during the past two summers. I request his appointment be effective June
22,2021, at an hourly rate of $15.00 per hour. The work plan is to have Aaron mow a portion of
Suminsby Park under my, or Highway Superintendent Ben Jacobs, supervision. His work
schedule will be two-to-four hours per week on a day of the week dependent upon the rate of
grass growth. He understands this is seasonal work that will end on or about October 15, 2021,
and that, being seasonal, he is not eligible for the same benefits a full-time employee would
receive other than the new EPL (Employee Paid Leave) benefits per federal law. The EPL
provides for all employees to receive one hour of paid time off for every 40 hours worked.

Thank you for consideration of my recommendation.

cc. Ben Jacobs, Highway Superintendent
Jake Wright, HR Manager
Jennifer McWain, Deputy Clerk



CONSENT AGENDA



CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is made this day of ,20 _, by and between the Mount

Desert Chamber of Commerce, a Maine non-profit corporation (hereinafter the “CHAMBER”) and
the Town of Mount Desert, a municipal corporation located in Hancock County, State of Maine
(hereinafter the “TOWN”).

and

WHEREAS, the CHAMBER is in need of A place near the Northeast Harbor public marina;

WHEREAS, the TOWN currently owns and operates a marina, information building, and

Harbormasters' building in the Village of Northeast Harbor; and

WHEREAS it is mutually advantageous for the CHAMBER to lease space from the TOWN

at a location to be designated and in a building to be provided by the Town.

1.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

LOCATION and USES. The CHAMBER is hereby leased a portion of the building depicted
as Exhibit A. The leased portion is the “Office” area, together with a non-exclusive right to
use (together with the Commercial Operators for Ticket Sales) the area labeled “Shared Use
Area” (the “Property”). The Property excludes the “Ticket Sales Area” which is being leased
to the Commercial Operators for Ticket Sales. The CHAMBER shall not conduct any other
business venture or other activities which are not directly related to the uses expressly
provided for herein. Parking for the CHAMBER and its customers shall be in the general
public parking areas of the Town owned parking lot, and use in connection with this Lease
shall otherwise conform to all Town rules and regulations.

The CHAMBER is hereby given a non-exclusive license to use the kitchenette and restroom
facilities, as depicted on Exhibit A, provided use by the CHAMBER shall be by the staff,
members and volunteers of the CHAMBER only, not the general public. Public restrooms
are available elsewhere. Use of the licensed areas shall at all times conform to the applicable
TOWN rules, and may be terminated, modified or restricted by the TOWN in the event of
violation of such rules.

TENNIS COURTS. The CHAMBER agrees to use its staff and volunteers at the Property to
schedule and coordinate use of the TOWN owned tennis courts at the Northeast Harbor
marina during the normal business hours of the CHAMBER. The CHAMBER and TOWN
shall set a reasonable rate to charge for use of the tennis courts. A written record of the use
of the tennis courts shall be maintained by the CHAMBER, and the CHAMBER shall
periodically (not less frequently than monthly) remit the fees, along with the record of use, to
the TOWN. The CHAMBER shall maintain a key to the tennis court, and shall ensure the
tennis courts are locked when not in use and are locked and vacant at the close of business.

Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

Page 1 of 6



This is an agreement for staffing exclusively, and not a lease of the tennis courts. As such,
the TOWN remains exclusively responsible to maintain the tennis courts, and may impose
rules and regulations in connection with use of the tennis courts.

3. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on June 1, 2021 and run through and
terminate June 30, 2022. The CHAMBER shall surrender the Property at the end of the lease
term in broom clean condition, normal wear and tear excepted.

4. RENT. At the time of execution, the CHAMBER shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the TOWN
as rent for the term of this Lease and in consideration for the benefits conveyed herein.

5. DUTIES OF THE CHAMBER. The CHAMBER shall pay any and all costs and expenses
resulting from this Lease and/or its occupation of the Property, except for the cost of
providing electricity and grounds maintenance which costs shall be the responsibility of the
TOWN. The CHAMBER specifically agrees to maintain and clean the Property and the
immediate area around the Property, including picking up trash and debris and disposing of
same in receptacles provided and designated by the TOWN. The CHAMBER shall provide
routine maintenance to the Property, including but not limited to routine vacuuming and
cleaning, and shall ensure all bills and costs which are the responsibility of the CHAMBER
are timely paid. The CHAMBER shall ensure no liens or other claims are asserted against
the Property for work done by or on behalf of the CHAMBER.

No storage of any brochures, pamphlets, or any other promotional information shall be
allowed by the CHAMBER outside the Property, except that one or more signs, advertising
the presence of the CHAMBER and its use of the Property, as described in Section 1, shall be
permitted, which sign and the placement thereof shall be subject to the prior review and
approval of the TOWN. The business of the CHAMBER shall be conducted exclusively
within the Property. The CHAMBER shall not permit any use of the Property which is in
violation of applicable TOWN, State, Federal or other governmental rules, laws or
ordinances, and shall not permit heaters or other flammable devices except with the prior
written consent of the TOWN and then only in compliance with this Lease and all applicable
manufacturer instructions.

At the Property, the CHAMBER agrees to provide general information (such as directions
and locations/sites of interest) to the public, as well as maintain brochures and other printed
material provided by the TOWN and related thereto.

In conducting its business, the CHAMBER shall furnish services on a professional,
reasonable and non-discriminatory basis. In the event, for any reason, the TOWN has
justifiable reason to believe the CHAMBER is acting in a discriminatory or otherwise less
than professional manner, the TOWN shall provide written notice to the CHAMBER and
reserves the right to take and/or mandate reasonable corrective action at the cost and expense
of the CHAMBER, which action includes requiring changes to personnel at the Property

Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

Page 2 of 6



and/or termination of this Lease.

6. NO JOINT VENTURE. The CHAMBER, its members, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers shall act in an independent capacity during the term of this Agreement and shall
not hold themselves out as officers, employees, agents, or volunteers of the TOWN.

7. INDEMNIFICATION and INSURANCE. The CHAMBER shall, at its own expense,
defend, indemnify and save harmless the TOWN from all demands, claims, causes of action
or judgments, and from all liens, expense and losses that may be incurred, including
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from or out of the performance of this Agreement, except
to the extent such loss or claim results from the intentional acts or negligence of the TOWN,
its officers, employees, or agents.

All property of the CHAMBER, and of all persons claiming through or under the
CHAMBER, shall be maintained at the sole risk and hazard of the CHAMBER.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the TOWN’s obligations hereunder are
limited to the extent provided pursuant to Maine law, including limits on statutory liability
under the provisions of the Maine Tort Claims Act. Among other protections, Title 14
MRSA sec. 8104-B of the Tort Claims Act provides a governmental entity (such as the
TOWN) is not liable for any claims that arise from the leasing of property. Without waiving
or otherwise limiting the protections and immunities provided at law, the TOWN shall be
responsible for repairs and replacement of the PROPERTY, except as otherwise provided
herein and/or to the extent necessary as a result of the CHAMBER’s negligence or
intentional acts. Damage resulting from the negligence or intentional acts of the CHAMBER
shall be repaired and replaced at the sole cost and expense of the CHAMBER. In the event
any work or repairs to the Property which is the responsibility of the TOWN are necessary,
the CHAMBER shall provide at least 10-days written notice and opportunity for the TOWN
to perform such work.

The CHAMBER agrees to maintain a minimum of $1,000,000 general commercial liability
insurance throughout the entire term of this Agreement with the TOWN as a named
additional insured and provide the TOWN with an annual Certificate of Insurance at the time
this Agreement is signed, and thereafter, from time to time, as may be requested by the
Town. The policy shall provide the Town with at least 10-days written notice prior to
cancellation.

8. NO ASSIGNMENT. The CHAMBER may not by operation of law or otherwise assign,
encumber, mortgage, or sublease this Agreement without the prior approval and consent of
the TOWN, in its sole and absolute discretion, and any such assignment in violation of this
provision shall be void and of no effect.

9. This Agreement may be cancelled (with or without cause) by the TOWN or by the

Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

Page 3 of 6



CHAMBER upon 30 days advance written notice to the other party.

10. GENERAL. All notices required by or useful under the terms of this Agreement shall be in
writing and be deemed delivered if dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage
prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to the following addresses, or to
such other addresses as the parties may designate in writing:

CHAMBER: Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce
42 Harbor Drive / P.O. Box 675
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

TOWN: Town of Mount Desert
Attn: Town Clerk
21 Sea St/P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor ME 04662

Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

Page 4 of 6



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed on their behalf, as of the date first written above.

Witness

Witness

Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

By:

Printed Name:

Its:

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

By:

Printed Name:

Its:

Page 5 of 6



Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2021

Page 6 of 6



NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of .20 by and
between the Neighborhood House, a non-profit corporation duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Maine, having a place of business in the Town of Mount
Desert, County of Hancock, State of Maine, hereinafter referred to as Neighborhood
House, and the Town of Mount Desert, a municipal corporation located in the County of
Hancock, State of Maine, hereinafter referred to as the Town.

WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, the Town has a municipal swimming pool; and
WHEREAS, the Town needs to have an organization which can operate the
municipal swimming pool for the 2021 season and thereafter: and
WHEREAS, Neighborhood House has the expertise and has successfully operated
the Town’s municipal swimming pool in prior seasons; and
WHEREAS, Neighborhood House is willing to continue to operate the Town’s
pool; and
WHEREAS, the Town and Neighborhood House have reached agreement on all
of the terms and conditions,
NOW, THEREFORE,
based upon all of the foregoing and other valuable considerations, it is agreed by and
between the Town and Neighborhood House as follows:

1. Possession and use: Beginning to

between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, and 11:00 a.m.

and 4:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday (hereinafter referred to as the Season), Neighborhood
House shall have exclusive possession of the Town’s municipal swimming pool located
at Joy Road in Northeast Harbor for use in implementing its own programs such as
summer camp swim times and shall provide access to the general public, so long as it
does not conflict with its program, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. The Town shall be responsible for the pool at all other times when the pool
is closed and the gates locked.

2. Maintenance of Pool: Neighborhood House shall be responsible for the opening and
closing of the pool, as well as the maintenance of the pool at all times during the Season
in a generally accepted safe and sanitary condition for use in Neighborhood House
programs and for use by the general public as hereinbefore provided. Neighborhood
House will bill the Town for the cost associated with the opening and closing of the pool,
as well as the general maintenance which the Town will either reimburse or pay directly
to vendors within thirty (30) days after the presentation of a bill, as has been practiced in
the past, subject to the provisions of Section 8 of this Agreement.

3. Personnel: Neighborhood House shall be exclusively responsible for the hiring of
duly qualified personnel and the general management for the operation of the pool during

Neighborhood House Agreement 2021

Page 1 of 3



the Season. Neighborhood House shall perform background checks on each person
applying for a job prior to the person being hired and working at the pool. No person
which may be a risk to the public in general or to Neighborhood House clientele shall be
employed or involved in the operation or general management of the pool during the
season.

4. Operation: Neighborhood House shall operate the Town’s municipal swimming pool
in a non-discriminatory manner, so as not to violate any State or Federal law.
Additionally, it shall operate the pool during the Season in a manner which will allow
access to the general public during reasonable periods of time as hereinbefore provided.

Neighborhood House shall have the right to charge a reasonable fee for the use of the
pool, which shall be used to help defray the operating costs of the pool.

S. Insurance: Neighborhood House shall maintain general comprehensive liability
insurance during the season in an amount of at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
coverage with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of Maine.
Neighborhood House shall name the Town as an additional insured at no cost to the
Town. The insurance shall be non-cancelable to the Town without thirty (30) days
written notice. Neighborhood House will provide the Town with a Certificate of
Insurance prior to the start of the Season.

6. Independent Contractor: It is agreed between the Town and Neighborhood House
that Neighborhood House is an independent contractor. As such, its employees are not
employees from the Town.

Neighborhood House will, at all times during the Season, maintain Worker’s
Compensation coverage on its employees. It will deduct and withhold any taxes due
from its personnel and fully comply with any State and Federal laws and indemnify the
Town for the same.

7. Permits, Licenses and Testing: Neighborhood House will obtain any permits and
licenses required to operate the pool during the Season. It shall perform all testing of the
pool and maintain all records as may be required by any State of Federal agency.

8. Limitation on the Town’s Financial Obligation: The Town’s financial obligation to
pay Neighborhood House under this Agreement is specifically limited to the amount
specifically raised and appropriated for the operation of the pool at the annual Town
meeting for the 2021 season. The Town specifically makes no representation to
Neighborhood House of the amount which will be raised and appropriated for the
operation of the pool in future years. No payments shall be made beyond the money so
raised and appropriated by the Town for each Season.

9. Termination: The Town and Neighborhood House each reserve the right to terminate
this Agreement, with or without cause, by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the

Neighborhood House Agreement 2021

Page 2 of 3



other of its intent to terminate this Agreement. Notices to the Town shall be hand
delivered, FAXed or mailed by First Class United States Mail, postage prepaid, to the
Town Manager and notices to the Neighborhood House shall be hand delivered, FAXed
or mailed by First Class United States Mail, postage prepaid. Each party will provide the
other in writing with the address to be used for notice to be given under the terms of this
Agreement.

10. Representation: Each party represents to the other it has full and complete authority
to enter into this Agreement.

11. Completeness and Modifications: This Agreement contains the total understanding
and agreement between the parties and may only be modified by a writing signed by both
parties. If any provision of this Agreement is declared null and void, it shall have no
impact upon the balance of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect as
hereinbefore provided.

12. General: All notices required by or useful under the terms of this Agreement shall
be in writing and be deemed delivered if dispatched by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to the following
addresses, or to such other addresses as the parties may designate in writing:

NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE: Neighborhood House
1 Kimball Road/P. O. Box 332
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

TOWN: Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea St/P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor ME 04662

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed on their behalf, as of the date first written above.

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

By:
Witness Printed Name:
Its:

THE NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE

By:
Witness Printed Name:
Its:

Neighborhood House Agreement 2021

Page 3 of 3



TICKET SALES AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is made this day of ,20 , by and between the
Commercial Operator named at the end of this Agreement (hereinafter COMMERCIAL
OPERATOR) and the Town of Mount Desert, a municipal corporation located in Hancock County,
State of Maine (hereinafter TOWN).

WHEREAS, COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is in need of a place for ticket sales and

WHEREAS, TOWN currently owns and operates a marina, information building, and
Harbormasters' building in the Village of Northeast Harbor; and

WHEREAS, it is mutually advantageous for the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR to provide
and the TOWN to site and allow ticket sales at a location to be designated and in a building to be
provided by the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

1. LOCATION and USES. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is hereby leased a portion of
the building depicted as Exhibit A. The leased portion is the cross-hatched area labeled
“Ticket Sales Area” from which area the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is permitted to sell
tickets for boat tours, excursions and similar cruising purposes departing from the Northeast
Harbor public dock area, together with a non-exclusive right to use (together with the Mount
Desert Chamber of Commerce) the area labeled “Shared Use Area” (the “Property”). The
COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall not conduct any other business venture or other
activities which are not directly related to the uses expressly provided for herein. Parking for
the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR and its customers shall be in the general public parking
areas of the Town owned parking lot, and use in connection with this Lease shall otherwise
conform to all Town rules and regulations.

The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is leased, on a non-exclusive basis, the area in front of the
Ticket Sales Area, for purposes of passengers purchasing tickets for the above purposes,
provided the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR agrees to not obstruct foot traffic, pathways or
sidewalks and to cooperate with the Town’s reasonable requests in connection with the
general use of the marina area.

The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is hereby given a non-exclusive license to use the
kitchenette and restroom facilities, as depicted on Exhibit A, provided use by the
COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall be by staff, members and volunteers of the
COMMERCIAL OPERATOR only, not the general public. Public restrooms are available
elsewhere. Use of the licensed areas shall at all times conform to the applicable TOWN
rules, and may be terminated, modified or restricted by the TOWN in the event of violation
of such rules.

Ticket Sales Agreement 2020

Page 1 0of 6



2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1 each year and run through
and terminate June 30 each year. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall surrender the
Property at the end of the lease term in broom clean condition, normal wear and tear
excepted.

3. RENT. At the time of execution, the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall pay Eight Hundred
Fifty Dollars ($850.00) to the TOWN as rent for the term of this Lease and in consideration
for the benefits conveyed herein.

4. DUTIES OF THE COMMERCIAL OPERATOR. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall
pay any and all taxes assessed against the personal property of the COMMERCIAL
OPERATOR, together with costs and expenses resulting from this Lease and/or its
occupation of the Property, except for the cost of providing electricity and grounds
maintenance which costs shall be the responsibility of the TOWN. The COMMERCIAL
OPERATOR specifically agrees to maintain and clean the Property and the immediate area
around the Property, including picking up trash and debris and disposing of same in
receptacles provided and designated by the TOWN. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall
provide routine maintenance to the Property, including but not limited to routine vacuuming
and cleaning, and shall ensure all bills and costs which are the responsibility of the
COMMERCIAL OPERATOR are timely paid. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall
ensure no liens or other claims are asserted against the Property for work done by or on
behalf of the COOPEATIVE.

No storage of any brochures, pamphlets, or any other promotional information shall be
allowed by the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR outside the Property, except that one or more
signs, advertising the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR’s use of the Property, as described in
Section 1, shall be permitted, which sign and the placement thereof shall be subject to the
prior review and approval of the TOWN. The business of the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR
shall be conducted exclusively within the Property. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall
not permit any use of the Property which is in violation of applicable TOWN, State, Federal
or other governmental rules, laws or ordinances, and shall not permit heaters or other
flammable devices except with the prior written consent of the TOWN and then only in
compliance with this Lease and all applicable manufacturer instructions.

At the Property, the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR agrees to provide general information
(such as directions and locations/sites of interest) to the public, as well as maintain brochures
and other printed material provided by the TOWN and related thereto.

In conducting its business, the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall furnish services on a
professional, reasonable and non-discriminatory basis. In the event, for any reason, the
TOWN has justifiable reason to believe the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR is acting in a
discriminatory or otherwise less than professional manner, the TOWN shall provide written
notice to the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR and reserves the right to take and/or mandate

Ticket Sales Agreement 2020

Page 2 of 6



reasonable corrective action at the cost and expense of the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR,
which action includes requiring changes to personnel at the Property and/or termination of
this Lease.

5. NOJOINT VENTURE. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR, its members, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers shall act in an independent capacity during the term of this

Agreement and shall not hold themselves out as officers, employees, agents, or volunteers of
the TOWN.

6. INDEMNIFICATION and INSURANCE. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR, by and
through its members, shall, at its own expense, defend, indemnify and save harmless the
TOWN from all demands, claims, causes of action or judgments, and from all liens, expense
and losses that may be incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from or out of
the performance of this Agreement, except to the extent such loss or claim results from the
intentional acts or negligence of the TOWN, its officers, employees, or agents.

All property of the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR, and of all persons claiming through or
under the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR, shall be maintained at the sole risk and hazard of
the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the TOWN’s obligations hereunder are
limited to the extent provided pursuant to Maine law, including limits on statutory liability
under the provisions of the Maine Tort Claims Act. Among other protections, Title 14
MRSA sec. 8104-B of the Tort Claims Act provides a governmental entity (such as the
TOWN) is not liable for any claims that arise from the leasing of property. Without waiving
or otherwise limiting the protections and immunities provided at law, the TOWN shall be
responsible for repairs and replacement of the PROPERTY, except as otherwise provided
herein and/or to the extent necessary as a result of the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR’s
negligence or intentional acts. Damage resulting from the negligence or intentional acts of
the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall be repaired and replaced at the sole cost and expense
of the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR. In the event any work or repairs to the Property which
is the responsibility of the TOWN are necessary, the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall
provide at least 10-days written notice and opportunity for the TOWN to perform such work.

The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR agrees to maintain a minimum of $1,000,000 general
commercial liability insurance throughout the entire term of this Agreement with the TOWN
as a named additional insured and provide the TOWN with an annual Certificate of Insurance
at the time this Agreement is signed, and thereafter, from time to time, as may be requested
by the Town. The policy shall provide the Town with at least 10-days written notice prior to
cancellation.

7. NO ASSIGNMENT. The COMMERCIAL OPERATOR may not by operation of law or
otherwise assign, encumber, mortgage, or sublease this Agreement without the prior approval

Ticket Sales Agreement 2020

Page 3 of 6



and consent of the TOWN, in its sole and absolute discretion, and any such assignment in
violation of this provision shall be void and of no effect.

8. This Agreement may be cancelled by the TOWN upon 30 days advance written notice to the
COMMERCIAL OPERATOR; if the Board of Selectmen determines that required insurance
has not been maintained or that the COMMERCIAL OPERATOR has breached any other

condition herein.

9. GENERAL. As used herein, the term COMMERCIAL OPERATOR shall refer to the
members thereof.

All notices required by or useful under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and be
deemed delivered if dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested, or delivered personally, to the following addresses, or to such other addresses as
the parties may designate in writing:

COMMERCIAL OPERATOR:
Name:

Mailing Address:

Phone/Email

TOWN: Town of Mount Desert
Attn: Town Clerk
21 Sea St/P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor ME 04662

Ticket Sales Agreement 2020

Page 4 of 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed on their behalf, as of the date first written above.

Witness

Witness

Ticket Sales Agreement 2020

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

By:

Printed Name:

Its:

COMMERCIAL OPERATOR

By:

Printed Name:

Its:

Page 5 of 6



Page 6 of 6



Town of Mount Desert
Board of Selectmen Meeting Schedule FY 2021-2022

Traditionally, Regular Meetings are held on 1st and 3rd Mondays of Each Month

July 6, 2021

July 19, 2021
August 2, 2021
August 16, 2021
September 7, 2021
September 20, 2021
October 4, 2021
October 18, 2021
November 1, 2021
November 15, 2021
December 6, 2021
December 20, 2021
January 3, 2022
January 18, 2022
February 7, 2022
February 22, 2022
March 7, 2022
March 21, 2022
April 4, 2022
April 19, 2022
May 3, 2022

May 16, 2022

June 6, 2022

June 20, 2022

Tuesday

Tuesday

Tuesday

Tuesday

Tuesday
Tuesday

Location

NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH
NEH

Notes

Alternate day for Independence Day

Alternate day for Labor Day

Alternate day for MLK Day

Alternate day for Presidents Day

Alternate day for Patriots Day
Organizational Meeting after Annual Town Mtg

Planning Board Meets in NEH Meeting Room 2nd and 4th Wednesday of each Month
Marine Management Committee Meets in NEH MR on 2nd Tuesday

Other Boards and Committees meet as required or needed



own of Mount Desert Holidays May 2021-May 2022

The Town Office will observe and be closed on the following dates:

Holiday Day/Date to be observed
Memorial Day Monday, May 31, 2021
Independence Day Monday, July 5, 2021*
Labor Day Monday, September 6, 2021
Indigenous Peoples Day Monday, October 11, 2021
Veterans Day Thursday, November 11, 2021
Thanksgiving Thursday, November 25, 2021
Friday, November 26, 2021
Christmas Day Friday, December 24, 2021*
New Year’s Day Friday, December 31, 2021*
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Monday, January 17, 2022
Presidents’ Day Monday, February 21, 2022
Patriots Day Monday, April 18, 2022
Memorial Day Monday, May 30, 2022

*For Maine State Government, holidays that fall on Saturday are observed on the preceding Friday; holidays
that fall on Sunday are observed on the following Monday.



\ Y,
74 OPEN TABLE MDI

BUILDING COMMUNITY, ONE MEAL AT A TIME

Clerical Office Staff
Town of Mount Desert
P.O. Box 248, Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

March 21, 2021

Dear Jennifer, Elizabeth, Claire, Lisa, Megan, and Kathryn,

Thank you so much for your recent donation of $100. We are eternally grateful
for your support in helping Open Table MDI to achieve its mission. We are
excited about where Open Table MDI currently is, as an organization, and the
future of what it can offer to our community - particularly during this time of
increased need with COVID-19 impacting our local and global economy. We
count you among the individuals who are supporting us in our efforts!

Important Tax Information: Open Table MDI is a non-profit organization as
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; tax ID no. 84-2965278.
No benefit was bestowed upon this donor in exchange for this contribution, other
than the joy of giving to an organization that combats food insecurity and builds
community in Hancock County. Please retain this receipt for your records.

Thank you for your amazing generosity and service.
Sincerely yours,

Pk

Puranjot Kaur,
Secretary of the Board

Open Table MDI Y

4
P.O. Box 451 )

Bar Harbor, Maine 04609
207.664.9026 opentablemdi@gmail.com

opentablemdi.org




Durlin Lunt

ﬁ

From: James Willis <jwillis@mdpolice.org>
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 11:59 AM
To: Durlin Lunt; Cornell Knight

Subject: Fw: Superb job on water rescue call!

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Marie is a MD dispatcher.

From: Karen Richter <krichter@mdpolice.org>
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 11:39 AM

To: James Willis <jwillis@mdpolice.org>
Subject: Superb job on water rescue call!

Jim,

Just wanted to pass on how great of a job Marie Overlock did on a water rescue call this morning. She was on
the phone with one of the kayakers who was in the water with a second kayaker in the middle of Long Pond
holding on to the kayak until help arrived. Marie remained on the phone with the caller for a lengthy period
of time until she knew help had arrived. | was in the patrol room and could hear her interactions with the
caller as well as all other callers and ongoing radio traffic. Marie was completely calm and composed
throughout the entire incident and I'd have to assume that the person on the other end of the phone felt quite
relieved to be able to keep in contact with her and know that help was on the way. There were many other
phone calls throughout the water rescue incident and each time Marie asked the kayaker to stay on the line
and reassured him she would be right back to him. Every phone call was answered professionally, politely and
calmly and once completed, Marie returned to the call with the kayaker asking how everyone was

and providing continuous updates. Marie's calmness and ability to multi-task in such a crucial situation was
quite impressive. At the end of the call, I heard her very politely thank the man for wearing a life jacket.

Koawenv

Karen J. Richter
Administrative Assistant
Bar Harbor & Mount Desert Police Departments

MDPD BHPD

PO Box 248, 21 Sea Street 37 Firefly Lane
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662  Bar Harbor, ME 04609
Phone: 207-276-5111 Phone: 207-288-3391
Fax: 207-276-5732 Fax: 207-288-2120
krichter@mdpolice.org krichter@mdpolice.org



m:\2021 cc meetings\june 1,2021\june 1, 2021 crm\june 1, 2021crm minutes docx

COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING

Learn more about HANCOCK COUNTY by visiting
www.co.hancock.me.us
Audio recordings of the meeting are available upon request

The regular meeting of the Hancock County Commissioners was brought to order by
Commissioner Clark at 8:30 a.m. on Tuesday June 1,2021. Commissioner Wombacher,
Commissioner Paradis, County Administrator Scott Adkins and Deputy County Administrator
Rebekah Knowlton were also in attendance, as well as several Department Heads and members
of the public. Due to Covid-19 social distancing requirements, the meeting was held remotely
via Zoom.

Adjustments to / approval of agenda:
MOTION: add to the agenda 9c Update on Finance Clerk application process and 10b
Update on Trail Easement process (Clark/ Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve the agenda as amended (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion
passed)

Public Comment:

Hendrik Gideonse spoke about the accreditation process that the Sheriff’s Office is pursuing.
Rebecca Wentworth spoke about the potential finance position as well as revised policing
models. Reverend Charles Stephens spoke in support of Mr. Gideonse’s and Ms. Wentworth’s
comments.

Meeting Minutes:
MOTION: Move to approve the minutes of the May 18, 2021 Special Meeting as presented

(Paradis/'Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

Employee Recognition:
MOTION: Move to congratulate and thank Detective Frank Jennings for his S years of

service (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

Airport:
MOTION: Move to accept and file the Airport Manager’s monthly report as presented and

outlined by the Airport Manager (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve the hire of Kenneth (Frank) Evenson of Ellsworth as a full
time airport maintenance person at grade 7 step C, effective June 5, 2021 as recommended
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed )

Unorganized Territory:
MOTION: Move to accept and file the UT Director’s report as presented

(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)



m:\2021 cc meetings\june 1,2021\june 1, 2021 crm\june 1, 2021crm minutes docx

MOTION: Move to approve the Solid Waste Agreement for T9ISD & T10SD with the Town
of Franklin as presented (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve the Solid Waste Agreement for Eagle Island with the Town of
Deer Isle as presented (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve Solid Waste Agreement for Tunk Lake portion of T7SD with
the Town of Sullivan as presented (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve the Fire Suppression & Emergency Response Agreement for
T4ND (Ogqiton) T3ND, the South Shore of West Lake in T40MD and the Northeast Shore
of Nicatous Lake south to Gassabias Stream in T41MD with the Town of Howland as
presented (Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

MOTION: Move to approve the Fire Suppression & Emergency Response Agreement for
T32MD, T34MD, T35MD, T39MD, T40MD excepting the northeast shore of West Lake
and T41MD south of Gassabias Stream with the Town of Milford as presented
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

The contract includes the area south of Gassabias Stream.

MOTION: Move to approve the Fire Suppression & Emergency Response Agreement for
TISD, T10SD, T1I6MD & the T7SD portion of the Sunrise Trail with the Town of Franklin
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

In prior years this was two separate agreements but is now combined into one agreement with an
annual stipend increase of $500.00.

MOTION: Move to approve the Fire Suppression & Emergency Response Agreement for
the Tunk Lake section of Township 7SD with the Town of Sullivan as presented
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

In prior years this was two separate agreements now combined into one agreement with no
annual stipend increase.

Jail:

MOTION: Move to approve extending Corrections Officer Michael Butters working out of
classification for another 30 working days, effective May 29, 2021 as requested
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)

RCC:
MOTION: Move to accept and file the RCC Director’s report as presented
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0 motion passed)

Maintenance:
MOTION: Move to accept and file the Facilities Director’s report as presented
(Paradis/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)



m:\2021 cc meetings\june 1,2021\june 1, 2021 crm\june 1, 2021crm minutes docx

Treasurer:
MOTION: Move to approve the Treasurer’s Warrant as presented (Paradis/'Wombacher
3-0, motion passed)

The Treasurer’s memo listed the following:
May GF, Airport and Jail Payroll Warrants #21-17, #21-18, #21-19, #21-20, in the aggregate
amount of $379,440.00;

May GF, Airport and Jail Expense Warrants #21-26, #21-27, #21-28, #21-29, #21-30, #21-31,
and #21-32 in the aggregate amount of $895,168.06;

May UT Payroll Warrants #21-44, #21-45, #21-46, and #21-47, in the aggregate amount of
$1,098.04;

May UT Expense Warrants #21-21 and #21-22 in the aggregate amount of $3,716.39

Commissioners:

CA Adkins reported that the Finance position ad has been published and applications are
beginning to come in. Commissioner Clark will review applications with CA Adkins and DCA
Knowlton.

The Commissioners discussed the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. Commissioner
Paradis said his focus was making a difference in Hancock County; he referenced broad band
and affordable workforce housing. Commissioner Clark suggested using the funds for a grant to
non-profits for the loss of revenue due to Covid during the last 15 months. CA Adkins said there
are several in-house projects that would qualify.

The trail easement discussion will take place at the next meeting, which will be held June 15,
2021.

MOTION: Move to adjourn (Paradis/Wombacher, 3-0, motion passed)
Meeting was adjourned at 9:35 am.

Respectfully submitted,

Rebekah Knowlton
Deputy County Administrator



# Coastal o=

POWERED BY FIBERIGHY TECHNOLOGY

BYPASS NOTICE — Municipal Waste (Residential)

FROM: Sent on behalf of Coastal Resources of Maine LLC
To: Waste Management, PERC, NEWSME, MRC, Maine DEP
DATE: June 16, 2021

DESCRIPTION OF WASTE:

Municipal Solid Waste from the below MRC communities/facilities will continue to bypass residential,
municipal waste to the Juniper Ridge Landfill in Old Town as of Monday June 21st until June 4th.

REASON FOR BYPASS: Coastal Resources’ inability to process incoming waste due to
suspension of operations. In addition, MRC received another notice this morning from PERC
alerting us that it needs to extend its bypass option until approximately July 4, 2021. PERC is still
experiencing excess inventory, and the rotating portion of the PERC generator is still undergoing
repairs out of state.

The inventory issue is the direct result of scheduled maintenance and an inspection that was to
have been completed by April 25, 2021 but due to the extended maintenance, PERC still has not
returned to normal operation. The maintenance on the generator component will not be
completed until July 2, 2021, and then must be shipped back to Maine and reinstalled.

PERC reports that in the interim, it will work toward making room for a resumption of MSW
deliveries on July 5, 2021.

(Tremont, Trenton, Cranberry

Alton Dedham / Lucerne Isle, Frenchboro, SW Harbor,
Bangor Dixmont Mount Desert)

Bar Harbor Dover - Foxcroft

Blue Hill/Surry Eddington Northern Katahdin SW
Bradley Franklin Orono

Brewer Hampden Otis

Brownville Holden Pleasant River SWD
Bucksport Hudson Sherman
Burlington/Lowell Lee Sorrento

Carmel Levant Springfield

Castine Mariaville Steuben

Central Penobscot Mattawamkeag Sullivan

Cherryfield Millinocket Swan's Island

Chester Milo Union River

Clifton MDI/ EMR communities Verona Island

Waste Management has been notified and agrees to this bypass event.

Coastal Resources of Maine 92 Harold Bouchard Way Hampden, ME 04444
www.CoastalResourcesME.com 207-401-5131



Durlin Lunt
“

From: Contact form at Mount Desert ME <cmsmailer@civicplus.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 12:38 PM

To: Durlin Lunt

Subject: [Mount Desert ME] Street Light Magic! (Sent by Todd Mydland, gtmars@optimum.net)

CAUT|ON: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Hello dlunt,

Todd Mydland (gtmars@optimum.net) has sent you a message via your contact form
(https://www.mtdesert.org/user/50/contact) at Mount Desert ME.

If you don't want to receive such e-mails, you can change your settings at https://www.mtdesert.org/user/50/edit.

Message:

Durlin: After unintentionally ambushing you on the phone on Monday, | thought it would be more appropriate for me to
express my thanks in writing instead of once again interrupting your day.

THANK YOU VERY MUCH for whatever immediate coordination you and/or your staff did in response to my reporting of
two non-functioning street lamps on Steamboat Wharf Road in Seal Harbor. Over the years | have become the unofficial
reporter of non-working street lamps, for both selfish (dog walking) and safety (history of vehicle accidents because of
lost control) reasons.

My call on Monday was followed by the bulb replacement yesterday, TUESDAY! | never had that kind of response in the
years' past, and the renewed glow all along SWR is very much appreciated.

Thank you (and whomever else was involved) for your assistance and for your continued service to the Town.

Todd Mydland



UNFINISHED
BUSINESS



Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5743 Fax 207-276-5742
www.mtdesert.org director@mtdesert.org

MEMO

To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager

From: Tony Smith, Public Works Director

Re:  StreamSmart Crossing Grant — Beech Hill Cross Road
Date: June 17, 2021

As described in my February 17, 2021, e-mail to you that was subsequently included on the March 1,
2021, Selectboard agenda, we were conditionally awarded $125,000 in grant funds under the DEP’s
2020 Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement Projects program.

The grant funds are to be used to supplement Town funds to pay for the costs associated with the
design and construction of the replacement of two culverts in the Beech Hill Cross Road with a
StreamSmart road crossing. A written summary of this DEP program and our needs, including the
description of a StreamSmart road crossing were included in an April 29, 2020, memo to you and the
Selectboard. Denning Brook flows through the existing culverts that are woefully undersized and in
very poor condition. These conditions contribute to flooding, roadway sinkholes and roadway
washouts in that area of the Beech Hill Cross Road, particularly last week, near its intersection with
Route 102 in Somesville. The existing culverts also negatively impact the passage of animal life
through them.

I have discussed drainage problems with this area of the Beech Hill Cross Road in the past, most
recently when I requested the Selectboard approve, which they did, the use of Road Reserve Funds in
the amount of $12,800 to hire the services of VHB Engineering to assist us with the grant funding
application. If you recall, VHB also conducted the Route 3 Peabody Drive Safety Improvements study
for the DOT and the Town under a cost-sharing program DOT offers.

In March of this year, I reviewed the DEP draft service contract with the DEP grant administrator;
yesterday, June 16", I received and reviewed the final DEP services contract and found it to be in
order. If signed by us, we are indicating our willingness to accept the grant and the terms by which its
funds can be used.

Based on our need and being awarded one of the few grants we are eligible to apply for in public
works and as a town, I request authorization to sign the enclosed DEP Service Contract dated March 8,
2021, on behalf of the Town. The DEP will sign the contract when our executed copy is returned to
them. They will provide us a signed copy for our records. These funds will not pay the total costs of
the StreamSmart road crossing but will assist us in funding its design, permitting and construction.

Thank you.
Enc.
ccC. Jennifer Buchanan, Deputy Clerk; Jake Wright, Finance Director; Kim Keene, CEO



SERVICE CONTRACT
DATE: March 8, 2021

ADVANTAGE CONTRACT #: 06A 20210319*2520

DEPARTMENT AGREEMENT #: 2020R1-29 Mount Desert, Beech Hill Cross Rd
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 125,000

START DATE: June 21, 2021 END DATE: June 21, 2023

This Contract, is between the following Department of the State of Maine and Provider:

State of Maine DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT: Environmental Protection

Address: 17 State House Station

City: Augusta State: ME Zip Code: 04333-0017

PROVIDER

PROVIDER: Town of Mount Desert

Address: PO Box 248

City: Northeast Harbor State: ME Zip Code: 04662

Provider’'s Vendor Customer #: VC1000066371

Each signatory below represents that the person has the requisite authority to enter into this Contract. The parties
sign and cause this Contract to be executed.

Department of Environmental Protection Provider
Signature MELANIE LOYZIM, COMMISSIONER Signature Tony Smith, Public Works Director ~ Date
Date

Service Contract (SC) rev. June 2019

Upon final approval by the Division of Procurement Services, a case details page will be made part of this contract.



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT
DEPARTMENT AND PROVIDER POINT OF CONTACTS

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: The following person is designated as the Contract Administrator on
behalf of the Department for this Contract. All financial reports, invoices, correspondence and related
submissions from the Provider as outlined in Rider A, Reports, shall be submitted to:

Name: John Maclaine

Email: john.maclaine@maine.gov

Address: 17 State House Station

City: Augusta State: ME Zip Code: 04333-0017
Telephone: (207) 615-3279

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR: The following person is designated as the Program Administrator. This
person will be able to respond to routine questions pertaining to the Contract; they will not be able to
alter the scope of the Contract.

Name: same as above

Email:

Address:

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone:

PROVIDER CONTACT: The following person is designated as the Contact Person on behalf of the
Provider for the Contract. All contractual correspondence from the Department shall be submitted to:

Name: Tony Smith, Public Works Director

Email: _ director@mtdesert.org

Address: PO Box 248

City: Northeast Harbor State: ME Zip Code: 04662
Telephone:(207) 276-5743

Page 2 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

RIDERS

The following riders are hereby incorporated into this Contract and made part of it by reference:
(check all that apply)

Funding Rider

Rider A — Scope of Work

Rider B — Terms and Conditions

Rider C — Exceptions - Additional Terms of Payment

Rider D - Federal Grant Terms & Conditions

Rider E — Lobbying Certificate if Over $100,000

Rider F — None

OXOD0OXNINKIK &

Rider G — Identification of Country in Which Contracted Work will be Performed

Other — None

All work conducted with funds under the terms of this contract must comply with all
applicable Executive Orders issued by Governor Mills in response to the COVID-19
pandemic, and may be deemed essential services. Any agreements between your
organization and another contractor using funds provided by this contract must include a
statement that the contractor must comply with all applicable Executive Orders issued by
Governor Mills in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Page 3 of 14




STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT
FUNDING RIDER

Internal Purposes Only

CODING: (Departments - Attach separate sheet as needed for additional coding.)

LINE TOTAL |FUND |DEPT | UNIT | SUB | OBJ |PROGRAM | PROGRAM BOND FISCAL
UNIT PERIOD FUNDING | YEAR

$62,500 018 | 06A | Z188 54 6331 Fy21

LINE TOTAL |FUND |DEPT | UNIT | SUB | OBJ |PROGRAM | PROGRAM BOND FISCAL
UNIT PERIOD FUNDING | YEAR

$62,500 018 | 06A | Z188 54 6331 Fy22

LINE TOTAL |FUND |DEPT | UNIT | SUB | OBJ |PROGRAM | PROGRAM BOND FISCAL
UNIT PERIOD FUNDING | YEAR

Funding Total: $125,000

The sources of funds and compliance requirements for this Contract follow:

State General Fund $0
Dedicated/Special Revenue $125,000
Federal Funds $0

Page 4 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

RIDER A
SCOPE OF WORK
TABLE OF CONTENTS
l. Acronyms
Il. Introduction/Overview
Ml Deliverables
Iv. Performance Measures
I ACRONYMS/DEFINITIONS:
The following terms and acronyms shall have the meaning indicated below as referenced in this
Contract:
COMMONLY KNOWN ACRONYMS
AND DEPARTMENT ABBREVIATIONS

Contract Formal and legal binding agreement

Department State of Maine Department Entering into this Contract

Provider Organization providing services under this Contract

State State of Maine
ll. INTRODUCTION/OVERVIEW:

The purpose of this Contract is provide partial funding for the installation of municipal stream
crossing upgrades to benefit public safety, infrastructure resiliency, and improve fish and wildlife
habitat. The competitive grant program for Municipal Infrastructure Stream Crossing Upgrades
matches local funding for the upgrade of municipal culverts at stream crossings.

The Provider will use the grant funds for the purpose stated in the grant application for
RFP#202008127. If the Provider significantly changes the scope/type of the system so that the
overall cost is changed, the Provider must notify the Department of the changes. If the overall
cost is less than that stated in the application, the Provider must return the unused balance to the
Department within 60 days. Only 8% of the total grant can be applied to engineering/design
costs.

DELIVERABLES:

The Provider shall perform all services and maintain all standards and requirements for services
provided under this Contract in accordance with the below:
1. Prior to the start of construction, submit a copy of the complete permit application
materials and the approved permit from the Army Corps of Engineers or a copy of the
final stamped engineering plans to be used for construction.

Page 5 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

2. Following completion of the project and prior to the final invoice being paid, send the
Contract Administrator photos of the completed project. These photos should include, at
a minimum: photos showing the structure from upstream and downstream of the
crossing, photos from the roadway looking upstream and downstream, and photos of the
culvert inlet and outlet water levels.

IV. PERFORMANCE MEASURES: By accepting grant funds from the State of Maine, Department of
Environmental Protection (Department) through the Grants for Stream Crossings Public
Infrastructure Improvement Projects, the Provider agrees to the following requirements.

1. The Provider shall complete any remaining design and/or engineering, and construct the
stream crossing upgrade in accordance with the design and/or conceptual sizing and
layout as described in the grant application and supplemental materials submitted for
RFP#202008127, unless specifically approved by the Contract Administrator in writing.

2. The Provider shall provide updates to the Department Agreement Administrator on a
quarterly basis. Updates shall include a description of work accomplished in the
preceding quarter, expense documentation, and an updated timeline or estimate on
project completion.

3. The Provider shall employ all erosion and sediment control best management practices
needed to control soil erosion on the site so that no eroded soil gets discharged to any
nearby waterbody, wetland or river, stream, or brook. Furthermore no eroded soil shall be
deposited on property beyond the project site. Erosion and sediment control best
management practices shall be installed in accordance with the Maine Erosion and
Sediment Control Practices Field Guide for Contractors.

4. When installing a crossing, river or stream flow shall be maintained at all times though
diversions, pumps, or other approved means. If cofferdams will be used, a means of
treating the water pumped out of the coffer dam area shall be installed so that water
discharging back into the river or stream is free of eroded soil, and is situated in such a
way as to not cause any soil erosion to occur at the discharge location in the river or
stream.

5. Crossings must not block fish passage. Crossings must be sized based on the size of
the watershed as determined by a registered professional engineer and designed to pass
or exceed the flow of the 100 year flood and must be sized at least 1.2 times the bank full
width of the river or stream, unless otherwise noted in the application. If installing a
culvert, it shall be embedded into the stream bottom substrate at least one foot or 25% of
the diameter of the culvert whichever is greater, to a maximum of 2 feet (measured from
the invert). The culvert shall be designed, installed and maintained to match the natural
stream grade to avoid drops or perching.

6. The Provider shall comply with all required local, state and federal regulations and obtain
any required permits prior to starting work on the project. All conditions imposed as part
of the permits shall be fully complied with. Any changes to design plans shall be
reviewed and approved by the Department and all permitting agencies prior to the start of
construction.

7. The Provider further agrees to submit such other data and reports as may be requested
by the Contract Administrator. The Provider shall submit all data and reports to the
Contract Administrator listed in section “DEPARTMENT AND PROVIDER POINT OF
CONTACTS?” of this Agreement.

Page 6 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

RIDER B
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. INVOICES AND PAYMENT: Department will pay the Provider as follows: Payment terms are net 30
days from the date the State receives an error-free invoice with all necessary and complete
supporting documents. Provider shall submit detailed invoices, itemizing all work performed during
the invoice period, including the dates of service, rates of pay, hours of work performed, and any
other information and/or documentation appropriate and sufficient to substantiate the amount invoiced
for payment by the State. All invoices must include the Department and Advantage Contract
numbers for this contract.

2. BENEFITS AND DEDUCTIONS. If the Provider is an individual, the Provider understands and agrees
that he/she is an independent contractor for whom no Federal or State Income Tax will be deducted
by the Department, and for whom no retirement benefits, survivor benefit insurance, group life
insurance, vacation and sick leave, and similar benefits available to State employees will accrue. The
Provider further understands that annual information returns, as required by the Internal Revenue
Code or State of Maine Income Tax Law, will be filed by the State Controller with the Internal
Revenue Service and the State of Maine Bureau of Revenue Services, copies of which will be
furnished to the Provider for his/her Income Tax records.

3. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY. In the performance of this Contract, the parties hereto agree that the
Provider, and any agents and employees of the Provider, shall act in the capacity of an independent
contractor and not as officers or employees or agents of the State.

4. DEPARTMENT'S REPRESENTATIVE. The Contract Administrator shall be the Department's
representative during the period of this Contract. He/she has authority to curtail services if necessary
to ensure proper execution. He/she shall certify to the Department when payments under the
Contract are due and the amounts to be paid. He/she shall make decisions on all claims of the
Provider, subject to the approval of the Commissioner of the Department.

5. CHANGES IN THE WORK. The Department may order changes in the work, the Contract Amount
being adjusted accordingly. Any monetary adjustment or any substantive change in the work shall be
in the form of an amendment, signed by both parties and approved by the State Purchases Review
Committee. Said amendment must be effective prior to execution of the work.

6. SUB-AGREEMENTS. Unless provided for in this Contract, no arrangement shall be made by the
Provider with any other party for furnishing any of the services herein contracted for without the
consent and approval of the Contract Administrator. Any sub-agreement hereunder Entered into
subsequent to the execution of this Contract must be annotated "approved" by the Contract
Administrator before it is reimbursable hereunder. This provision will not be taken as requiring the
approval of contracts of employment between the Provider and its employees assigned for services
thereunder.

7. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER. The Provider shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or
otherwise dispose of this Contract or any portion thereof, or of its right, title or interest therein, without
written request to and written consent of the Contract Administrator. No subcontracts or transfer of
Contract shall in any case release the Provider of its liability under this Contract.

8. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. During the performance of this Contract, the Provider
agrees as follows:

Page 7 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

a. The Provider shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment relating to
this Contract because of race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, physical
or mental disability, or sexual orientation, unless related to a bona fide occupational qualification.
The Provider shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and employees
are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, national
origin, physical or mental disability, or sexual orientation.

Such action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotions,
or transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other
forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Provider agrees
to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment notices
setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

b. The Provider shall, in all solicitations or advertising for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Provider relating to this Contract, state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, age,
physical or mental disability, or sexual orientation.

c. The Provider shall send to each labor union or representative of the workers with which it has a
collective bargaining Contract, or other Contract or understanding, whereby it is furnished with
labor for the performance of this Contract a notice to be provided by the contracting agency,
advising the said labor union or workers' representative of the Provider's commitment under this
section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

d. The Provider shall inform the contracting Department’'s Equal Employment Opportunity
Coordinator of any discrimination complaints brought to an external regulatory body (Maine
Human Rights Commission, EEOC, Office of Civil Rights) against their agency by any individual
as well as any lawsuit regarding alleged discriminatory practice.

e. The Provider shall comply with all aspects of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in
employment and in the provision of service to include accessibility and reasonable
accommodations for employees and clients.

f.  Providers and subcontractors with Contracts in excess of $50,000 shall also pursue in good faith
affirmative action programs, which programs must conform with applicable state and federal laws,
rules and regulations.

g. The Provider shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in any subcontract for any work
covered by this Contract so that such provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor,
provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard
commercial supplies or raw materials.

9. EMPLOYMENT AND PERSONNEL. The Provider shall not engage on a full-time, part-time or other
basis during the period of this Contract, any (a) state employee or (b) any former state employee who
participated in any way in the solicitation, award or administration of this Agreement. This restriction
shall not apply to regularly retired employees or any employee who has out of state employment for a
period of twelve (12) months.

Page 8 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

WARRANTY. The Provider warrants that it has not employed or contracted with any company or
person, other than for assistance with the normal study and preparation of a proposal, to solicit or
secure this Contract and that it has not paid, or agreed to pay, any company or person, other than a
bona fide employee working solely for the Provider, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee,
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon, or resulting from the award for making this
Contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Department shall have the right to annul this
Contract without liability or, in its discretion to otherwise recover the full amount of such fee,
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

ACCESS TO RECORDS. As a condition of accepting an Contract for services under this section, a
Provider must agree to treat all records, other than proprietary information, relating to personal
services work performed under the Contract as public records under the freedom of access laws to
the same extent as if the work were performed directly by the Department or agency. For the
purposes of this subsection, "proprietary information" means information that is a trade secret or
commercial or financial information, the disclosure of which would impair the competitive position of
the Provider and would make available information not otherwise publicly available. Information
relating to wages and benefits of the employees performing the personal services work under the
Contract and information concerning employee and Contract oversight and accountability procedures
and systems are not proprietary information. The Provider shall maintain all books, documents,
payrolls, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to this Contract and make such
materials available at its offices at all reasonable times during the period of this Contract and for such
subsequent period as specified under Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for
Community Agencies (MAAP) rules. The Provider shall allow inspection of pertinent documents by
the Department or any authorized representative of the State of Maine or Federal Government, and
shall furnish copies thereof, if requested. This subsection applies to contracts, contract extensions
and contract amendments executed on or after October 1, 2009.

TERMINATION. (a)The performance of work under the Contract may be terminated by the
Department whenever for any reason the Contract Administrator shall determine that such
termination is in the best interest of the Department. Any such termination shall be effected by
delivery to the Provider of a Notice of Termination specifying the date on which such termination
becomes effective. Upon such termination, the Department shall pay the Provider for work performed
by the Provider prior to the date of Notice of Termination. (b) Either party may terminate this
Agreement for cause by providing a written notice of termination stating the reason for the
termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the defaulting party shall have fifteen (15)
business days to cure the default. If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be cured within
fifteen (15) business days, the defaulting party shall have such additional time, as the parties may
agree to, to cure the default, provided the defaulting party has taken steps to cure the default with the
initial 15 days.

GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS. The Provider warrants and represents that it will comply with
all governmental ordinances, laws and regulations.

GOVERNING LAW. This Contract shall be governed in all respects by the laws, statutes, and
regulations of the United States of America and of the State of Maine. Any legal proceeding against
the State regarding this Contract shall be brought in State of Maine administrative or judicial forums.
The Provider consents to personal jurisdiction in the State of Maine.

STATE HELD HARMLESS. The Provider shall indemnify and hold harmless the Department and its

Page 9 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all third party claims, liabilities, and costs,
including reasonable attorney fees, for any or all injuries to persons or property or claims for money
damages, including claims for violation of intellectual property rights, arising from the negligent acts or
omissions of the Provider, its employees or agents, officers or Subcontractors in the performance of
work under this Agreement; provided, however, the Provider shall not be liable for claims arising out
of the negligent acts or omissions of the Department, or for actions taken in reasonable reliance on
written instructions of the Department.

NOTICE OF CLAIMS. The Provider shall give the Contract Administrator immediate notice in writing
of any legal action or suit filed that is related in any way to the Contract or which may affect the
performance of duties under the Contract, and prompt notice of any claim made against the Provider
by any subcontractor which may result in litigation related in any way to the Contract or which may
affect the performance of duties under the Contract.

APPROVAL. This Contract must have the approval of the State Controller and the State Purchases
Review Committee before it can be considered a valid, enforceable document.

INSURANCE. The Provider shall keep in force a liability policy issued by a company fully licensed or
designated as an eligible surplus line insurer to do business in this State by the Maine Department of
Professional & Financial Regulation, Bureau of Insurance, which policy includes the activity to be
covered by this Contract with adequate liability coverage to protect itself and the Department from
suits. Providers insured through a “risk retention group” insurer prior to July 1, 1991, may continue
under that arrangement. Prior to or upon execution of this Contract, the Provider shall furnish the
Department with written or photocopied verification of the existence of such liability insurance policy.

NON-APPROPRIATION. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, if the State does not
receive sufficient funds to fund this Contract and other obligations of the State, if funds are de-
appropriated, or if the State does not receive legal authority to expend funds from the Maine State
Legislature or Maine courts, then the State is not obligated to make payment under this Contract.

SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision, or part thereof, of this
Contract shall not affect the remainder of said provision or any other provisions, and this Contract
shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or part thereof had
been omitted.

ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. In the event of a conflict between the documents comprising this
Agreement, the Order of Precedence shall be:

Rider C Exceptions

Rider B Terms and Conditions

Rider A Scope of Work

Funding Rider

Rider D Included at Department's Discretion

Rider E Included at Department's Discretion

Rider F Included at Department's Discretion

Rider G Identification of Country in which contracted work will be performed
Business Associate Agreement included at Department's Discretion

Other Included at Department's Discretion

Page 10 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

FORCE MAJEURE. The performance of an obligation by either party shall be excused in the event
that performance of that obligation is prevented by an act of God, act of war, riot, fire, explosion, flood
or other catastrophe, sabotage, severe shortage of fuel, power or raw materials, change in law, court
order, national defense requirement, or strike or labor dispute, provided that any such event and the
delay caused thereby is beyond the control of, and could not reasonably be avoided by, that party.

SET-OFF RIGHTS. The State shall have all of its common law, equitable and statutory rights of set-
off. These rights shall include, but not be limited to, the State’s option to withhold for the purposes of
set-off any monies due to the Provider under this Contract up to any amounts due and owing to the
State with regard to this Contract, any other Contract, any other Contract with any State department
or agency, including any Contract for a term commencing prior to the term of this Contract, plus any
amounts due and owing to the State for any other reason including, without limitation, tax
delinquencies, fee delinquencies or monetary penalties relative thereto. The State shall exercise its
set-off rights in accordance with normal State practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an
audit, the finalization of such audit by the State agency, its representatives, or the State Controller.

ENTIRE CONTRACT. This document contains the entire Contract of the parties, and neither party
shall be bound by any statement or representation not contained herein. No waiver shall be deemed
to have been made by any of the parties unless expressed in writing and signed by the waiving party.
The parties expressly agree that they shall not assert in any action relating to the Contract that any
implied waiver occurred between the parties, which is not expressed in writing. The failure of any
party to insist in any one or more instances upon strict performance of any of the terms or provisions
of the Contract, or to exercise an option or election under the Contract, shall not be construed as a
waiver or relinquishment for the future of such terms, provisions, option or election, but the same shall
continue in full force and effect, and no waiver by any party of any one or more of its rights or
remedies under the Contract shall be deemed to be a waiver of any prior or subsequent rights or
remedy under the Contract or at law.

AMENDMENT: No changes, modifications, or amendments in the terms and conditions of this
Contract shall be effective unless reduced to writing, numbered and signed by the duly authorized
representative of the State and Provider.

DEBARMENT, PERFORMANCE, AND NON-COLLUSION CERTIFICATION: By signing this
Contract, the Provider certifies to the best of Provider’'s knowledge and belief that the aforementioned
organization, its principals and any subcontractors named in this Contract:

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or
voluntarily excluded from bidding or working on contracts issued by any governmental agency.

Have not within three years of submitting the proposal for this contract been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for:
i. Fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
federal, state or local government transaction or contract.
i. Violating Federal or State antitrust statutes or committing embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

Page 11 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

ii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (b) of this certification; and

iii. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal had one or more federal, state
or local government transactions terminated for cause or default.

b. Have not Entered into a prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm,
or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and this
proposal is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. The above-mentioned entities
understand and agree that collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and can result in
fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards.

Page 12 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

RIDER C
EXCEPTIONS

RIDER C is in addition to RIDER B #1. The Department will pay the Provider as follows:

Invoices must be sent directly from the Provider. Payments are subject to the Provider's compliance with
all items set forth in this Agreement and subject to the availability of funds. The Department will process
approved payments within 30 days upon the receipt of an accurate and acceptable invoice. An invoice
will be considered accurate and acceptable if it contains correct pricing information relative to the
grant, provides all supporting documents, proof of payments to others as applicable, and other specific
and agreed-upon requirements listed within the grant that result from this RFP. All unobligated funds
from the original grant award determination will go back to the “pool of funds” for redistribution to other
grantees upon project completion. A final invoice(s) must be submitted by Provider within 45 days of
contract end date.

Page 13 of 14



STATE OF MAINE | SERVICE CONTRACT

RIDER G
IDENTIFICATION OF COUNTRY

IN WHICH CONTRACTED WORK WILL BE PERFORMED

Please identify the country in which the services purchased through this contract will be
performed:

& United States. Please identify state: Enter State
O Other. Please identify country: Enter Country

Notification of Changes to the Information

The Provider agrees to notify the Division of Procurement Services of any changes to the
information provided above.

Page 14 of 14



State of Maine
Procurement Justification Form

This form must accompany all contract requests and sole source requisitions (RQS) over $5,000 submitted to the Division of
Procurement Services.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide the requested information in the white spaces below. See the guidance document posted
with this form on the Division of Procurement Services website (Forms page) for additional instructions.

PART I: OVERVIEW

Department Office/Division/Program:

Environmental Protection/ Commissioner’s Office

Department Contract Administrator or
Grant Coordinator:

John Maclaine

(If applicable) Department Reference #:

2020R1-29 Mount Desert, Beech Hill Cross Rd

Amount:

(Contract/Amendment/Grant) $125,000 Advantage CT/RQS #: | 06A 202103192520
CONTRACT Proposed Start Date: June 21, 2021 Proposed End Date: | June 21, 2023
Original Start Date: Effective Date:
AMENDNENT Previous End Date: New End Date:
Project Start Date: Grant Start Date:
SRS Project End Date: Grant End Date:

Vendor/Provider/Grantee Name, City, State:

Town of Mount Desert,PO Box 248, Mount Desert, ME 04662

Brief Description of Goods/Services/Grant:

To install Stream Crossing Public Improvement Projects to improve
flooding, public safety, and improve fish and wildlife habitat

PART ll: JUSTIFICATION FOR VENDOR SELECTION

Mark an “X” before the justification(s) that applies to this request. (Check all that apply.)

X | A. Competitive Process X | G. Grant
B. Amendment H. State Statute/Agency Directed
C. Single Source/Unique Vendor I. Federal Agency Directed
D. Proprietary/Copyright/Patents J. Willing and Qualified
E. Emergency K. Client Choice .
F. University Cooperative Project L. Other Authorization

PART lll: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Please respond to ALL of the following:

1. Provide a more detailed description and explain the need for the goods, services or grant to
supplement the response in Part |.

The 2018 “Transportation Bond package included $5 million dollars for municipal stream crossing upgrades.
These monies fund a competitive grant program that matches local funding for the upgrade of municipal culverts
at stream crossings to improve fish and wildlife habitats, decrease flooding, and increase community safety.
Projects proposals are scored using a consensus approach and awards are made based on the funding
requested up to a maximum award of $125,000 per project.

2. Provide a brief justification for the selected vendor to supplement the response in Part Il

PJF

Page 1 of 84

Rev. 1/22/2020



State of Maine
Procurement Justification Form

PART lll: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Grants were awarded to the top scoring projects for each round of proposals submitted to the Department based
on the criteria of Public infrastructure, safety and community impact (25%), Cost-effectiveness and efficiency
(25%), and Fish and Wildlife Habitat Improvement (50%). The 42 selected projects for RFP#202008127 are as

follows:

MUNICIPALITY PROJECT LOCATION AMOUNT MUNICIPALITY PROJECT LOCATION AMOUNT
Auburn Fish Hatchery Road $125,000 Ludlow Ludlow Road $125,000
Bangor Grandview Avenue $68,358.33 Millinocket Penobscot Avenue $125,000

Biddeford Granite Point Road $125,000 Monroe Dixmont Road $125,000
Piscataquis County Taylor Road $125,000 Mount Desert Beech Hill Cross Road $125,000
(Blanchard Township)
Bowdoinham Dingley Road $125,000 Naples Edes Falls Road $125,000
Washington County East Ridge Road $125,000 Naples Horace Files Road $110,000
(Cathance Township)
Corinna Line Road $125,000 Norway Morse Road $85,000
Corinna Sunken Bridge Road $125,000 Paris Parson Road $125,000
Dedham Bald Mountain Road $125,000 Peru Packard Road $76,180
Denmark Moose Pond Road $125,000 Pownal Poland Range Road $125,000

Dover-Foxcroft Grove Street $125,000 Durham Swamp Road $125,000

Durham Quaker Meeting House Road $125,000 Rockland West Meadow Road $125,000
Eddington Clewleyville Road $70,000 Sabattus Marsh Road $125,000
Eddington Davis Road $75,000 Sabattus Marsh Road $125,000

Fairfield 0Old Country Road $125,000 Thomaston Beechwood Street $125,000
Falmouth Mast Road $125,000 Piscataquis County Wilcox Road $125,000

(Trescott Twp)
Fayette Jackman’s Mill Road $125,000 Wells Bragdon Road $125,000
Hartland Fuller Corner Road $125,000 Willimantic Elliotsville Road $125,000
Hollis Muddy Brook Road $125,000 Willimantic Mountain Road $125,000

Litchfield Dead River Road $125,000 Wiscasset Old Ferry Road $125,000
Litchfield Dead River Road $50,000 Woodstock 0ld County Road $125,000

to grantee.

3. Explain how the negotiated costs or rates are fair and reasonable; or how the funding was allocated

Proposals were scored using the consensus approach to determine the cost effectiveness and efficiency of the
project, including the proportion of funding from other sources, avoided costs associated with the project and
project efficiency.

4. Describe the plan for future competition for the goods or services.

n/a

Signature of requesting
Department’s Commissioner

PART IV: APPROVALS

By signing below, | signify that | approve of this procurement request.

(or designee):
Printed Name: Melanie Loyzim, Commissioner Date:

Signature of DAFS

Procurement Official:
Printed Name: Date:

PJF

Page 2 of 84

Rev. 1/22/2020




Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5743 Fax 207-276-5742
www.mtdesert.org director@mtdesert.org

To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager From: Tony Smith, Public Works Director
Re:  StreamSmart Crossing Engineering Services — Beech Hill Cross Road
Date: June 17, 2021

As we know, we were awarded a $125,000 grant under the DEP’s 2020 Stream Crossing Public
Infrastructure Improvement Projects program. These funds are to be used to supplement Town funds
for the replacement of two culverts in the Beech Hill Cross Road with a StreamSmart road crossing to
pass the waters of Denning Brook more effectively under the roadway. In conformance with our
purchasing policy, I recently asked VHB for a written engineering proposal that includes a scope of
services to take us from design through the bidding process for the project. I received the proposal on
June 15, 2021, in the amount of $34,993 that contained the services I anticipated, including:

Services for geotechnical engineering

Environmental and permitting services

Field assessment and aquatic organism passage design

Culvert design

Final design and associated cost estimates

Bidding services and recommendation related to the bid results

In my opinion, the proposed fee is fair relative to the services offered and needed. In accordance with
the grant requirements, we can use up to eight percent of the grant amount or, $10,000, towards
professional engineering services for this project. This leaves a balance of $24,993 for us to provide. It
is anticipated the balance of the grant or, $115,000 will go towards construction costs of the project the
balance of which, if we accept the grant, will be requested at the May 2022 town meeting for
construction and construction engineering related services.

Based on the above, I recommend:

1. We retain the professional engineering services of VHB as described in their proposal
referenced above for the culvert replacement project in the amount of $34,993 rounded by me
to $35,000.

2. We use $10,000 of the DEP grant funds of $125,000 towards the $35,000 VHB costs leaving
an engineering project cost balance of $25,000.

3. We use $25,000 plus a $5,000 contingency for unforeseen circumstances for a total amount of
$30,000 to be drawn and spent from the Public Works Road Reserve Account Number
4050100-24573 with a current balance of $155,557.

4. That I be authorized to sign the proposal with VHB on behalf of the Town.

Thank you.

cc. Jennifer Buchanan, Deputy Clerk; Jake Wright, Finance Director; Kim Keene, CEO



NEW BUSINESS



Town of Mount Desert
John Lemoine, Harbormaster
40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5737 Fax 207-276-5741
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org
Web Address www.mtdesert.org

June 11, 2021

MEMO

To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster
Ref: Public dock float chains

I am asking for authorization to pay for repairs made to the Northeast Harbor Public Dock
mooring chains, inspections on the Commercial Dock, pile zinc’s and mooring float 300 by
Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for $4,101.20. The Northeast Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410100-
24681 has a balance of $86,346.81.

John Lemoine
Harbormaster

C:\Users\jmcwain\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\GAY5SRQGX\2021 public dock mooring chains.docx 6/11/2C



Town of Mount Desert

John Lemoine, Harbormaster
40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5737 Fax 207-276-5741
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org
Web Address www.mtdesert.org

June 11, 2021

MEMO

To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster
Ref: Seafood Buyers Permit

At the last Harbor Committee meeting they voted to raise the Seafood Buyers Permit from
$1,000.00 to $5,000.00 per year. This was done to keep us inline with the other local Harbors. I
am asking that you approve this rate change for the 2022 season. I will be available if you have
any questions.

John Lemoine
Harbormaster

C:\Users\jmcwain\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\GA Y SRQGX\Seafood buyers permit_.docx 6/11/20



Town of Mount Desert
Jake Wright, Finance Director
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5531  Fax 207-276-3232
Web Address www.mtdesert.org

financedirector@mtdesert.org

Board of Selectmen,

James Wadman, C.P.A. has furnished the attached Independent Accountants Report on Applying
Agreed-Upon Procedures. These procedures were performed to complete a cash audit of the Town
treasurer’s account records for the period 7/1/20 through 5/13/21. The report details the procedures
that were performed and the reconciled cash balances as of 5/13/21. | have reviewed the report along
with additional workpapers provided by the offices of James Wadman, C.P.A. Upon review, it appears
that Agreed-Upon Procedures have been applied and that the information disclosed appears to be
accurate. As such, | recommend that the Board approve the AUP report prepared by the offices of James
Wadman, C.P.A.

Thank you,

Jake Wright

Finance Director



»

]ames W Telephone 207-667-6500

Facsimile 207-667-3636
Wadman i James W. Wadman, C.P.A.
Certified Public Accountant Ronald C. Bean, C.P.A.

Kellie M. Bowden, C.P.A.
Wanese L. Lynch, C.P.A.
Amy E. Atherton, C.P.A.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON
PROCEDURES

May 13, 2021

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Mt. Desert
Mount Desert, ME 04662

We have performed the procedures enumerated below in order to complete our cash audit of the Town
treasurer’s account records for the period of July 1, 2020 through May 13, 2021. The purpose of the cash audit
was to establish account balances and verification of the existence of the cash accounts as of May 13, 2021 for
the new treasurer to assume their responsibility of these accounts and account balances. This agreed-upon
procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In completing this audit, we have performed the following
procedures and have communicated the following results:

1) Reviewed/verified checking account bank reconciliations and investment accounts to bank statements and
confirmations as of May 13,2021. Minor adjustments to the general ledger are required to agree the cash
accounts to the cash account reconciliations.

2) Verified existence of all bank accounts with the bank as of May 13, 2021.

3) Counted all cash drawers and petty cash on hand as of May 13, 2021 and reconciled to MUNIS daily
activity.

4) Reconciled cash account balances at May 13, 2021 were determined to be:

Town g/f checking acct #10-10100 BHBT acct #7618 and #7618 ICS $3,761,792.70
Town MDES checking acct #10-10112 BHBT acct #7832 and #7832 ICS $26,995.58
Town Credit Card acct #10-10110 BHBT acct #7881 and #7881 ICS $75,527.26
Town Money Market acct #10-10137 The First Acct #403400000708 $5,124,193.25
Town DEP acct #10-10117 BHBT acct #7857 $108.18
Town Cemetery Investment acct #50-10200 BHBT acct #5600587900A $26,248.35
Town Reserves Investment The First acct #40391002643:
GF Acct #10-11110 $1,944,091.00
Reserve Acct #40-11110 $5,729,135.36
Marina Acct #60-11110 $806,228.01
Unposted May activity thru 5/13/21:
Interest $2,447.33
Fees ($3,174.54)
Change in FV ($74,030.83)

In addition to these bank balances, the Town has $1,225 of petty cash on hand, plus $10,628.24 of receipts
processed as of 5/13/21 at approximately 2:00 — 2:30 pm.

295 Main Street * P.O. Box 889  Ellsworth, Maine 04605 + wadmancpa.com



As a result of these procedures, we had no findings or material misstatements to report. The Town cash
accounts reconcile to the bank statements and any adjustments will be recorded by the end of Friday, May 14,
2021.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions or if we can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

James U. Wadman, C.P.A4.

James W. Wadman, C.P.A.

&
¢
]
=
:f’}l
v




Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248
Telephone 207-276-5743 Fax 207-276-5742
www.mtdesert.org director@mtdesert.org

MEMO

To:  Durlin Lunt, Town Manager

From: Tony Smith, Public Works Director

Re:  Request to Solicit Competitive Plow Truck Bids
Date: June 16, 2021

I request Selectboard authorization to solicit competitive bids for our purchase of a new model
year 2022 plow truck, dump body and associated plow equipment (aka dump truck) for the
Highways Division of the Public Works Department. This truck will be equipped much the same
as our other plow trucks, including with a diesel engine. Our research has shown that electric
trucks that will fit our needs will not be available soon; that they are in the design, testing and
troubleshooting phase. The dump truck the new one will replace is a model year 2012 with
approximately 59,000 miles on it.

This request is in conformance with the town’s purchasing policy and capital improvement plan.
If authorized, this purchase will be made from the Public Works Equipment Reserve Account
4050100-24500 with a current balance of $289,941 Our last purchase of a dump truck was a
model year 2018 that cost approximately $159,000. Based on what we are seeing in the market, [
anticipate the cost of the new dump truck to be approximately $175,000 to $180,000. We have
been told to expect delivery of a fully outfitted dump truck approximately12 months from the
date we place an order for it.

As we routinely do, the truck that is being replaced, model year 2012, will remain in service for
us as a spare truck for use year-around but particularly in the winter months. The model year
2005 truck we have been using as a spare has been out of service due to it having a broken
frame. We also have a 1998 snow hauling truck that has been out of service with a broken frame.
We will advertise the plow truck and the snow truck for sale with proceeds from the sale put
back into the reserve account. We only intend to sell the snow truck and chassis, keeping the
dump body for installation on a soon to be retired packer truck and chassis scheduled to be
replaced in 2024.

Thank you for consideration of my request.
Cc.  Jennifer Buchanan, Deputy Clerk

Ben Jacobs, Hwy. Supt.
Jake Wright, Finance Director



OTHER BUSINESS



Town of Mount Desert
Durlin E. Lunt, Town Manager
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5531  Fax 207-276-3232
Web Address www.mtdesert.org

manager@mtdesert.org

To: Board of Selectmen

From: Durlin E. Lunt®/

Date: June 17, 2021

Subject: Consider extending the expiration dates on 2020 clam licenses to June 30 2022.

Due to the inability of the Shellfish Conservation Committee to meet this past year due to concerns of
COVID-19 it is recommended that the clam licenses that are due to expire on June 30, 2021 be extended
until June 30, 2022. This recommendation has the endorsement of the Shellfish Conservation
Committee, the commercial diggers, and the Department of Marine Resources of the State of Maine.



TREASURER’S
WARRANTS



Warrants for BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda:

Description

A. Warrants to be Approved and Signed:

#

Town Invoices AP2171
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
(Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )
Town State Fees & P/R Benefits  AP2169
AP2170
Town Payroll PR2128
C. Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices #
School Payroll #26

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING

Date

06/22/21

06/09/21
06/16/21

06/11/21

06/18/21

v On

$

6/21/2021

Amount

606,484.63

12,903.06
3,344.75

116,226.49

219,259.93

958,218.86

T:\TREASURER\FORMS\exception warrants.xlsx062121



Mount Desert School Department
PAYROLL WARRANT REGISTER

Report # 15293

Include Authorization Codes: Yes

Batch: 10434

Check Dates: (Earliest) - (Latest)

Cash Account Number:
Minimum Check Amount: $0.00

Check# Check Date Code Name Chk Grp Gross Pay Net Pay Direct Deposit
06/18/2021  STAT TREASURER, STATE OF MAIN 5,862.00 5,862.00 0.00
06/18/2021 IRS INTERNAL REVENUE SERVIC 19,884.30 19,884.30 0.00

47238 06/18/2021 495 ASHLEY GRAVES | 200.00 184.70 0.00
47239  06/182021 498 MEGAN C. HOWELL I 400.00 367.40 0.00
47240 06/18/2021 208 ERINJ. ALLEN | 1,136.94 768.80 768.80
47241  06/18/2021 149 MARIAH D. BAKER | 120.00 109.08 109.08
47242 06/18/2021 311 LAURA-JEAN BEAL 1 2,440.38 1,853.31 1,853.31
47243  06/18/2021 11 KELLY S. BEAULIEU 1 2,487.95 1,628.73 1,628.73
47244  06/18/2021 463 RENE L. BECKER 1 2,907.38 2,233.55 2,233.55
47245 06/18/2021 266 JULIANNA R. BENNOCH 1 2,632.69 1,940.40 1,940 40
47246  06/18/2021 491 SANDRA G. BOYCE 1 424421 3,366.53 3,366.53
47247 06/18/2021 314 ANDREW J. CARLSON | 3,669.23 2,479.69 2,479.69
47248  06/18/2021 18 JANICE P. CARROLL | 531.18 278.20 278.20
47249  06/18/2021 337 AMBER G. CHARRON | 2,093.57 1,443.93 1,443.93
47250 06/18/2021 91 JUDITH CULLEN | 2,065.38 1,547.08 1,547.08
47251  06/18/2021 308 Gloria A. Delsandro 1 3,712.31 2,661.45 2,661.45
47252  06/18/2021 43 SARAH R. DUNBAR | 3,077.23 2,270.77 2,270.77
47253 06/18/2021 481 ELIZABETH FARRELL 1 889.01 733 80 733.80
47254 06/18/2021 52 WANDA J. FERNALD 1 2,488.46 1,607.45 1,607.45
47255  06/18/2021 57 JASON W, FOUNTAINE ! 2,541.60 1,889.32 1,889.32
47256 06/18/2021 63 HEATHER M. GRAVES i 2,411.53 1,529.84 1,529.84
47257 06/18/2021 65 GAYLE M. GRAY 1 2,526.92 1,774.55 1,774.55
47258 06/18/2021 331 RUSSELL W, GRAY | 1,333.34 1,114.95 1,114.95
47259 06/18/2021 92 ABIGAIL A. HARMON 1 1,447.60 1,056.98 1,056.98
47260 06/18/2021 595 WILLIAM HERRMANN | 1,454.72 1,185.44 1,185.44
47261 06/18/2021 485 TASHA L. HIGGINS 1 1,557.03 1,082.97 1,082 97
47262 06/18/2021 477 ANGELIQUE E. HODGDON | 2,439.00 1,585.33 1,585.33
47263  06/18/2021 244 KRISTIN D. HOLLEY | 1,407.12 1,038.61 1,038.61
47264 06/18/2021 313 ANDREA W. HOWELL 1 4,455.53 3,774.32 3,774.32
47265 06/18/2021 293 Amy L. James 1 2,632.69 1,770.90 1,770.90
47266  06/18/2021 90 REBECCA A. JARVIS 1 2,325.00 1,564.94 1,564.94
47267 06/18/2021 312 BETHANY G. JOHNSON ! 2,436 00 1,799.08 1,799.08
47268 06/18/2021 291 PATRICIA A KELLEY 1 1,734 40 1,216.55 1,216.55
47269 06/18/2021 335 CYNTHIA A. LAMBERT 1 7,793.56 6,445.34 6,445.34
47270 06/18/2021 487 BENJAMIN MACKO | 5,342.85 4,188.78 4,188.78
47271 06/18/2021 321 MAX E. MASON 1 2,335.00 1,768.44 1,768.44
47272  06/18/2021 292 TARA MCKERNAN ] 2,225.38 1,610.78 1,610.78
47273 06/18/2021 490 ANNA D. MONTE 1 4,069.24 3,291.74 3,291.74
47274  06/18/2021 461 JANET NORDELUS 1 1,830.34 1,261.00 1,261.00
47275  06/18/2021 193 HARVEY BRUCE NORWOOD 1 3,568.65 2,625 32 2,62532
47276  06/18/2021 237 JUSTIN B. NORWOOD 1 10,589.23 7,251.64 7,251.64
47277 06/18/2021 238 WENDELL L. OPPEWALL I 1,389.65 808.49 808.49
47278 06/18/2021 240 JEANNE C. OTT 1 2,680.76 1,860.50 1,860.50
47279  06/18/2021 138 AMY Y. PHILBROOK 1 2,592.85 1,778.00 1,778.00
47280 06/18/2021 275 JOELLE A. RUDDY 1 2,526.92 1,919.93 1,919.93
47281 06/18/2021 74 LEON E. SARGENT 1 3,356.80 2,342.80 2,342.80
47282 06/18/2021 493 EDITH SCHRIEVER 1 3,431.39 3,148.86 3,148.86
47283 06/18/2021 120 KAREN L. SHARPE | 3,069.04 1,906.58 1,906.58
47284 06/18/2021 489 EMMA L. SOULES 1 2,143.42 1,595.96 1,595.96
47285 06/18/2021 375 KATHLEEN C. ST DENIS 1 5,117.30 3,416.19 3,416.19
47286 06/18/2021 404 KERRY L. TAYLOR | 6,543.69 4,531.68 4,531.68
47287 06/18/2021 476 BRUCE L. TRIPP 1 669.12 579.93 5§79.93
47288 06/18/2021 459 SHANNON L. WESTPHAL 1 1,988.46 1,519.03 1,519.03
47289 06/18/2021 448 JACQUELINE A. WHEATON 1 2,450.00 1,709.98 1,709.98

6/17/2021 10:19:33AM

Sorted By: Check Number

‘Check Amt  Void

0.00
0.00
184.70
367.40
0.00
0.00
000
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
000
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Page 1 of 3



Report # 15293

Mount Desert School Department
PAYROLL WARRANT REGISTER

Chk Grp Gross Pay Net Pay Direct Deposit  Check Amt Void |

i Check# CheckDate Code Name

| WARRANT# -
pate:P A | D JUN18 201

NGdd S s 13
SUPERINTENDENT / \/ 7

A\

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

$ 171,665.20 net pay

$ 47,594.73 payroll A/P
/// $ 219,259.93
/

N— S e

6/17/2021 10:19:33AM Page 3 of 3




Mount Desert School Department
PAYROLL WARRANT REGISTER

Report # 15293

Check# Check Date Code Name Chk Grp Gross Pay Net Pay Direct Deposit Check Amt M
47290  06/18/2021 307 LAUREN M. WHITE 1 1,053.46 739.97 739.97 0.00
47291 06/18/2021 469 TIFFANY C. YARBROUGH 1 3,452.63 3,157.69 3,157.69 0.00
47292  06/18/2021  AFLAC AFLAC 127.42 127.42 0.00 127.42
47293  06/18/2021 BCBS ANTHEM BC/BS 11,110.74 11,110.74 0.00 11,110.74
47294  06/18/2021 HMD HORACE MANN COMPANIES 65.66 65.66 0.00 65.66
47295  06/18/2021 HM HORACE MANN INSURANCE C 700.00 700.00 0.00 700.00
47296  06/18/2021 MEA MAINE EDUCATION ASSOCIA 1,290.00 1,290.00 0.00 1,290.00
47297  06/18/2021  MSRS MAINE PERS 23,263.48 23,263.48 23,263.48 0.00
47298  06/18/2021 MET METROPOLITAN LIFE INSUR 350.00 350.00 0.00 350.00
47299  06/18/2021 DELTA DEN NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL 1,324.32 1,32432 0.00 1,324.32
47300 06/18/2021  PRIM PRIMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS. 370.00 37000 0.00 370.00
47301 06/18/2021 FEDHEALTH TREASURER, STATE OF MAIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

210,366.06  171,665.20 130,028.66 15,890.24
Check Authorization Summary

Type Description Count Amount
Employee Checks 2 552.10

Voided Checks 0 0.00

Direct Deposits (Fully Distributed) 52 106,765.18

ACH Employee Credits 52 106,765.18

ACH Employee Debits (Voids) 0 0.00
Deduction Checks 9 15,338.14

Voided Checks 0 0.00

ACH Vendor Credits | 23,263.48

ACH VendorDebits (Voids) 0 0.00

ACH Online Payments 0 0.00
Taxes EFTPS Payment - Debit 2 25,746.30

6/17/2021 10:19:33AM Page 2 of 3



Ase32.1035 ‘playapian H Apuam

poop A A31jj039 uewuieyd adiA ‘WeH r maynepn

uewpn( 1 eyuepn uewJiey) ‘Asjnedey g uyor

‘Uauill9|asS

*9NPaYds Siy} ul paweu
saiied ay) olun Aed 0} paldaJip a4e noA pue aweu yoea jsutede 13s wns ayl
anoge paisi| suoneuudosdde ayl 03 ajqeadieyd pue anp si 313yl 18yl Aj1143d 01 St syt

£€9'¥8%'909 $ :SINIWISYNESIA IV10L
SYI3YD PaPIOA - S V/N ysnoiyy V/N *4IGNNN D 40 143
siuawdhed HOV Z9'v80°CE ) 2961 ysnosyy TS6T *HIGNNN 143
sjuawAed 21u04323|3 - S V/N ysnosyy V/N “HIANNN HDO3IHD
syjuawAed 03y TO00V‘'VLS S 8LTISTE ysnoayy TTISIE *YIGWNN NDIHD
1202 ‘Tz dunf 31va MD3IHD

TL1C #dV INVHIYVM

INVHYVM 318VAVd SINNODIY
143S3d LINNOIN 40 NMOL



LNIVIW 3 SYIVddY NEID

00%¥SS 00TO0SST S€°8¢€l

£d SAITddNS WOOY MDOLS T80CLY80E6 :9DTOAUT
se"8¢el TL1cdY 1Z0Z/02/S0 1802L¥80¢E6 SIDNdO0dd NOSMVYT LP6 1dd 1202/22/90 LS61
99°'v¥8Z°¢ FIYIOL SS6T ADHFHD
NOILONYLSNOD 0TLLS ZS0000€ 99°%8Z°€
s3 30adsuTr ® uUTwWpe asnoy jreq ZT-YPE€08T :92TOAUT
99°¥%8Z°¢ TLT2dvY 120Z/ST/90 ZT-Y9P€08T ONI NOISHA ® ONIYIINIONA HNIJHAHH L8T 143 1TZ20Z/22/90 SS61
TT ILZ 61 FIVIOL ¥S6T1 ADIHD
dWNF 334 DNId4IL T0SSS O00STSST TIT TLZ 6T
s3 993 dr13 Aen 8€0ZH :9DTOAUI
TT TLZ 6T TLTZdY TZ0Z/T€E/SO 8¢€0CV ONI ¥WH SLT 1dd 1202/22/90 HS61
00" T80'% fIVIOL €S6T ADHHD
TYDHT dd 00S¥S 0%P0CZT 0S5°Z98
TYDET 00S%S 0LLOZZT 0S°CTIL
LNVLINSNOD ODNINNVId 006%S 0LLOZZT 0SS LEE
SI233BW 3SN pueT] 8T¥Z8S :3dTOAUTL
05°CT6'T TLTZdvY T202/80/90 81vZ8S MYT LV SAENJOLLY AdOdvdd NOLVH
NIRWNJVY-INVYLINSNOD £€€5PS  00602CT 0S°89L
¥S1d ‘suotjeTjobaN uotupn LI¥Z8S :adToAaul
0S5°89L TLTZdadv T20Z/80/90 LT¥Z8S MYT IV SAINJOLLV AJOHVdd NOLVH
TYOdT 00S¥S O0TTOZZT 00°020°T
NIWAY - LNV.LINSNOD £€€S%S  0060¢CT 00°09
TYDdT d9d 00S¥S O0OFPH0ZZT 00°0C¢E
utwpy pue ‘YH ‘paeog butuueld TebaT 91%Z8S :201O0AUT
00°00%'T TL12dv TZ0Z/80/90 91¥%Z8S MYT IV SAINJOLLVY AQOdvVdd NOLVH TI8T Id3 1Z0Z/22/90 €S61
96°LLT'T FIVLOL ZS6T ADIHD
TYDdT dd 00S¥S 0¥¥0CZZT 96°LLZ'T
*BIW Axxend- uuInOOeW - ISTTIOD - TITd [ebaT L09Z :9dTOoAUT
96°LLZ'T TL12dv 1Z0Z/10/90 L09¢C ¥d ‘AdHYS ¥ ¥HITIOD $¥8T Idd 120Z/2Z/90 2S6T
VL STL FIYLIOL TS6T ADHHD
AS €S-LNIVW ® ¥IVddyd 5a71d €€y 002SS 0€E€0PPT PL STIL
putdeospue] ¢ uotieas 686TTIYV :90TOAUT
VL STIL TLTZdAVY 1Z0Z/1€/S0 686TTVY NIQIUYD B ONIJVDSANYT SNOSIYYd O ¥V Z Ldd 1TZ0Z/2Z/90 1S6T
OSdd "ILd IDIOANI
LIN LNYVIIVM od dLVYd ANT IDIOANI IWYN JOANIA IJXL JLVa XHD ON dDIEHD
9908 pung Texsusd HE-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODDV HSVYD
qspysode TUYNINOL SINAWISINGSIA HSYD d/¥ noA15069
T d 3I888Q JUNOW FO uMmMOg ST:LT TZTOZ/9T/90




ve'C1s SIVLIOL T96T ADHHD
TaNd ONILVIH 00%E€ES 9990SST ¥E€°CIS
WE-Butiesy JdIMM HAN Tond Z# STVD £°9ST :adt1ToAUT
ve cIs TLTZdY 1202/01/90 88LL6T ANYdWNOD TIO STTII¥A ON 0T19¢ Idd 1202/22/90 1961
80°¥vZ *IYIOL 096T JDFHD
TANA ONILVIH 00%€ES 8990SST 80 ¥¥C
WZ-BuTjesH 4IiMMm HS Tond z# STVD T1°22T f9dToAUL
80 " ¥¥C TLT2dY 1202/L2/S0 890967 ANVAWOD TIO STII¥d ON €T9C 14" T20T/22/90 096T
00°88¢ *IVIOL 6S6T MDHHD
INIVAN 3 SYIVdHY NIAD 00¥SS O0O0TOSST 00°66T
£d JIYLS MAN JIYD0DH :2dTOoAUT
00°66T TLTCdvY T20Z/%0/90 v6€0C8Y ONI SHDIAY¥AS LSId NJIHAOW
LNIVIN 3 SYIVdHd NID 00¥SS 000ZSST 00°68
s3 p3 3 pd 3e Toxjuod 3sad :9DTOAUT
00°68 TLTCdY 1z02/62/%0 VIVPTILY ONI SHEDIAY¥HIS LSHd NIHAOW CPIC Ldd TZ0Z/ZZ/90 6S61
85°CI8'T IVIOL 8S6T1 ADHEHD
6L-TdNd JTOIHIA 60€y 0TLES 0€EOVPT OV ¥9
TdNd JTDIHIA 0TLES 0€E0PPT LB LT
6L-TdNd HTDOIHIA 60€Yy 0TLES 0€E€O0PPT ¥6° 9%
6L-TdNd JTDOIHAA 60€Y 0TLES 0€E€0¥PT 8T C9
6L TenJ :9d0T0AUT
6v°"T0C TLTZdY T¥TOTZOZ 120Z/S0/SO ad TZso ALIATYIVA LIATILS NIVR
TaNd HTOIHIA 0TLES O00TOSST 8% 91V%
WI-TSNd STOTYSA AMH STIVD L 0F%T 19dTOAUT
87 91% TLTCdvY 1Z0Z/T€/S0 AMH TZSO ALATIVA LHIILS NIV
TaNA JTOTIHIA 0TLES 000CSST 88°G8¢
NZ-TaNd STOTYSA DRd STVD L 1€ :9pTOAUT
88°G8¢ TLTZAY TZ0Z/T€/S0 o%d TZSO ALATYVA LITILS NIV
TaNd JIDIHIA 0TLES TSS0SST €L°808
WH-TeNd STDTYSA MM STUYD L LLZ :@DTOAUT
€L°808 TLTedv 1Z20Z/1€/S0 MM TZSO ALAIYVA LITELS NIVW €%0T TZ0Z/22/90 8S6T
S€°8¢C SIYIOL LS6T ADHHD
OSHJ TId ADIOANI
LIN LNVIIVM od HLVa ANI IOIOANI HWUYN JOONIA JdAL dLVd XHD ON MDHHD
9908 pung Texausd HI-63D 00TO0T 00T :LNNODDY HSYD
gspysode TYNINOL SINIWISA¥NESIA HSVD d/¥ noA15069

3JI8S| JUNOW FJO uMo],

ST:LT TZOZ/9T/90




08" 9ST SIYIOL STTISTE MDFHD
INANd 1003 00TLS 0te0¥PPT 08 PST
sbey swen ZTILZZ :@dTOoAUT
08 " ¥ST TL12dvY TZ0Z/92/S0 ZrTLee ONIHLOTD HAILDALOYd NOYIDYHI LSLT ardd 120Z/2Z/90 STISTIE
LT°9C TIVIOL VITISTE ADIHD
SOAS TYDINHDHL 092%S TSS0SST LT 9C
WH-90TAXSS butbed wiely MM dA9Y00LEYN :9DTOAUT
LT 9C TL1Zd¥Y TZ0Z/10/90 AA9P00LEVN OTT SIDIAYIS DNIODVYSSHW NVYDIJIWY Z9%Z dlryd 120Z/2Z/90 HIISTE
ST €0T’'S FIVIOL €TTISTE ADEHD
9AI959Y S3e0Td/SBUTIOON HAN W 189%Z O00TIOTP9 0T TOT'¥
sbutxoow 3oop oTTqnd 1828 :3adTOAUT
0Z TI0T'¥ TL1Zd¥Y T202/90/90 828 DTT ‘HDIAYIS 3O¥Vd "9 HVATVY
SOAS AO0Nd TANNVHD €ZTLS O00%0T09 S6°TS8
INeyYy ISAO0 33em OUu S3awos 0918 :@dTOAUT
S6°TS8 TLTZdY TZ0Z/LT/SO 0918 OTT ‘IDIA¥ES FD¥VE "9 HVATY
SOAS A0Nd TINNVHD €ZTLS 0020T09 00°0ST
o3)em ou Teas bTx L6T8 :9DTOAUT
00°0ST TLTcdv 1Z02/60/90 L6C8 DT 'EDIANEAS dDYVE "€ HVATIVY ZLLZ ardd 1202/22/90 €ITISTE
9L LE TIVIOL CTISTIE ADFHO
SWJIOJAINN 008€S 0€E0PPT 9L LE
saA0Tb ssaip wioJTun SZ6¥%Z S0 :9dTOAUT
9L"LE TLTZdY 120Z/21/S0 SZ6¥Z°S0 ONI SWJOJINN NATIV LZ aryd 1202/22/90 ZIISTIE
00" %8T PTIVLIOL TTISTE ADHHD
LNIVW % SYIVddd NID 00%SS O0O0TOSST 00°¥8T
rd JIvddd dWnd IVdH LOLYS :9DTOAUI
00°%8T TLTZdY 1z02/20/90 LIOLYS ONI TIVYDINVHDAW WEY LLPT ardd 1202/22/90 TTISTE
08°8S¢ fTIYLOL CT96T1 ADHHD
SHITddNS TYIdINID 0TTES O€EO0PPT 08 8SE
s3onpoxd butueard 96SSLOVET :2DTOAUT
08 8S¢ TL12aY TZ0Z/12/S0 96SSLOVET ONI ‘dNITN €SST 143 120Z/2Z/90 T96T
OSEA TLAd IDIOANI
LIAN INVIIVM od JLVA ANI dDIOANT HWVN JOANIA HAJXL IV MXHD ON XDOFHD

gspysode
€

d

9908 Ppund Texausd HA-53D

TUYNJNOL SINIWASINGSIA HSVD d/V

3I9S8Q 3JUNOK JO UMOJ,

00TOT 00T :INNODDV HSVD

noA15069
ST:LT TZO0Z/91/90




INIVW 3 JIVddy 9aid 00255 000ZSST SE€°Z¢€
WI-Ydea 9 X ND T YDTNW derd 8TbzLd :9DTOAUI
Sg€°z¢ TLTZdY 1202/90/5S0 8TbzLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
INIVW 3 JIVddd 5ald 00255 000ZSST LS' 6%
WZ-yo2ea ZT X ZOSH 2Iqd YITm ueald IW 96€zLE :9DTOAUL
LS 6¥ TLT2dY 1202/90/50 96czLd 0D NMOY¥d I d
INIVW 3 JIVddad oald 00ZSS 000ZSST 8% ¥6
"TeD § T9nd TAD T T:0S ‘ZO8ZTI Tond T:0S S6€zLd :9DTOAUL
8% v6 TLTZdY 120Z2/90/5S0 seczLd 0D NMOY¥d & 4
INIVW 3 JIVddd 5aId 002SS 000ZSST 9€°S
WA-SM3IDS pue s3Tog ‘sSIanN 0€€ZLE :3DTOAUTL
9¢°§ TLTzdy 120Z/S0/S0 ocezLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
FOYLSO0d O0PTES ZSS0SST 60°61
WI-soTdwes BuTassl qeT SpTsIno Jo sabeilsod €6czZLd :9d0TOAUTL
60°6T TL12d¥Y 1202/%0/S0 €6ceLd 0D NMOYE I d
INIVW 3 SYIVdAd NAD 00%SS 00TOSST 8T L
WH-Z X ZOTZT oerd 31eld juteg Aeads 96ZzLd :3dTOAUL
8T L TL12dY 1202/%0/S0 96zzLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
ININdIN0d JFTHLO 006€S ZSSOSST LS 0€
WZ-sbeqg ysexy ‘pesydoW uollod ATd z€ §GcezLd adtoaul
LS 0€ TLTzdavy 120Z/%0/S0 sszzLd 0D NMOo¥d I 4
INIVA 3 SYIVdII NID 00%SS 00TOSST 65°€
WI-ZOZT ¥detrd 3jeld jured Aeads z6TTLE @dTOAUT
65" € TL1ZdY 1Z0Z/%0/50 zezzLd 0D NMOY¥d I 4
SdITddNS FDIAJ0 000€S 00TOTO09 S¥°9
sAay 965ZL9 :9dTOAUTL
SV 9 1LT2dY 1202/01/S0 965zZLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
SLYOTd/SONIJOON-d 1IN0 TZTILS 00T0T09 2O %I
ITedax Ia3em 099€Lg :9dTOAUT
20" %1 TLTZd¥Y 1202/92/50 099¢Ld 0D NMO¥d L 4
INIYW ® SYIVATY NID 00%SS 00€0T09 06 €T
sat1ddns 3D0p 05Z€Lg :9@dTOAUT
06°€C TLT2dY 1202/02/S0 0szeLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
SAITddNS FDIJJ0 000€S 00TOT09 8Z°I9
sotTddns aoT330 9€TELE :9DTOAUT
8Z°T19 TLT12ZdY T202/61/S0 9eT€ELE 0D NMO¥d I d
INIVW 3 SYIVdId NID 00%SS  00€0T09 9T L
shay 6292L9 :@dTOAUT
9T L TLT2dav 1202/11/S0 6z9z.L9 0D NMO¥E L d SL ar¥d 1202/22/90 9TTISICE
DSAA TId ADIOANI
LAN INVIIYM 0od  dLVd ANI HDIOANI HWYN JOANIA HJAL  HIVA MHD ON MDHHD
9908 pung Texsusp HA-53D 00TI0T 00T :INQODDVY HSVYD
qgspysode TYNINOL SINIWASINGSIA HSYD d/¥ noA15069

3I9sag JUNOK 3JO umol

ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




SHITddNS TVYIINID OTTES 0€€0PPT 86 €EPT

1onJ pauued 0Z9€Ld :9D>TOAUTL
86 E€EVT TLT2ZdY ¥PT0TIZ0T TZ0Z/SZ/SO 0zotcLd 0D NMO¥d I 4
_ INIYW 3 JIVday 5a1d 002SS 000CSST 86 ¥
WA ydes Z X z08ZT I=nd T:0S dA Z89€LE :3®0TOAUT
86 ¥¥ TL1Z2dY 1202/92/S0 z89¢eLd 0D NMO¥d 1 4
LNIVA 3 SJYIVAFd NID 00%SS O00TO0SST 66 ¥
WA-50L0TYTaS-a2ddoT 3s 9T9€Ld :@dTOAUI
66 v¥ TLT2dY 1202/52/S0 919€Ld 0D NMO¥d 1 4
INIYW ® SYIVAAY NID 00%SS O00TOSST T6°0C
WZ-abexesn umol 103 butddrys SLSELE :9@2TOoAUT
16°0C TLTZAY 1202/52/S0 sLseLd 0D NMO¥E L 4
INIVW ¥ SYIVAdd NID 00%SS O00TOSST €6°S
WH-dS YUTd ITd Td 3ud >IN 80S€Ld :@dTOAUT
€6°S TLTZdY 1202/%2/S0 805€LE 0D NMO¥Y I 4
INANdINOA YTHIO 006€S ZSSO0GST 8L°8T
Wd-pIo) auoyd ~uUmuQOU UON H&QOOEM 3TOA 6LYELT nwv..nO>CH
8L°8C 1,124V 1202/%2/S0 6LVELEH 0D NMO¥E I 4
INIYW ® JI¥ddad 5a1d 00255 000ZSST 65°8S
WI-ued ATYD ‘0D % dwund IXF NAd ‘IIO spoom desq TETELE :90TOAUT
65°8S TLTZdY 120Z/61/S0 TETELE 0D NMO¥d I 4
INIYW 3 JI¥dday 5a1d 002SS 000TSST 62 %2
WF-09 % dwund TILD "3IXT NI vZrELE :9D0TOAUT
62 °%C TLTZdY 1202/61/S0 pzreLE 0D NMO¥d & 4
INIYW ® JIVdad 5aid 00ZSS 0002SST 8% 1€
WH-S23TTd dTap SSTA 9z6zLd :9DTOAUT
8% 1€ TL124Y 1202/LT/SO 9zezLE 0D NMO¥L I 4
INANAIN0F JTHLO 006€S TSSO0SST 86°8
WF-yoea z x anid A3sges Axds 4i1sd IOV Zb8zLd :9D0TOAUI
86°8 TLT2dY 1202/%1/S0 zhezLE 0D NMO¥d I 4
INANdINOA ¥FHLO 006€S TSSO0SST TE€ €%
W3-ued ysTd ‘yoeald ‘uesl)d IW ‘sabuods 0€9ZL9 :9dTOAUTI
TE €V TLTZdY T20Z/1T/S0 og9zLe 0D NMO¥d I 4
INIVW ® JIVddd 95a1d 002SS 000ZSST L9 %L
WI-3)eY pue pPa3S Sseid Lz92Ld :9DdTOAUT
L9 VL TL124Y T20Z/T1T/SO LzozLg 0D NMO¥E L 4
INIVW ® JIVddd 9a1d 002SS 000ZSST 66 FF
WI-€70F UumeT J MOTYlL TsSzZLd :9oTOAUT
66 ¥P TLT24Y 1202/01/S0 1552L8 0D NMO¥E I 4

OSHA 'ILAd FDIOANI

LaN INVIYYM 0od  dFIVA ANI FOIOANT SWVYN JOONIA EJAL  FIVA MHD ON MOHHD
9908 Ppung Texsusn Ha-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODDOY HSVYD
qspysode TUNNNOL SINAWASANGSIA HSVD d/V noA15069

3I9SS8Q JUNOW IO UMOL ST:LT TZTOZ/91/90




IDIION DITdNd S0Z9S 0Cc0cZT 06°8C¢E
INVLTINSNOD ONINNVId 006V¥S 0LL0TCT 0S°PTIC
JDILON DITdNd S0C99 0FH0CCT 0T ST8
INIWLINEDIA 0ZLCS OTTO0ZZT ST LES
JUBWRTNIDSY pPue 3DTION DI Tqnd 8€8ZFE :adTOAUT
S5°180°C TLTZaY T20Z/1€/S0 8€8CHE ONI NOILSINODVY ¥d 0S¢ ardd 1202/2TT/90 €TTISIE
e 99 SIVLOL ZZISTE DHEHD
IOVATINW dd 0Z21TPS O0OFPHOCZT TE 99
‘juswesSINqUTaY 96eaTW pieog butuueld TZ0E€90 0ZTI0LO :2DTOAUT
ceE"99 TLTCdY TZ0Z/%0/S0 TZ0E€90 0CTIOLO NOLVH IANNVOL 3 TIVHSIVW ¥LET ardd 1202/2Z/90 TTISTE
0070798 IYLOL TTTISIE MDHEHD
STVINALYN-DSIN 0€L€ES 00TOSST 00°0%8
£d @5dadt vaecey 20TOAUT
00°0¥%8 TLT2d¥Y 120Z/%2/S0 vSeey ONI SNOS ® L1OD 90N0d 0SZ ardd 1202/22/90 TZISTE
00" T9T'T SIYLOL 0TTSTIE MDHAHD
d9OVYLS0d O¥TES O0TT0ZZT 00 T9T'T
€7°0$®’00LZ STII9 XYL TZ0Z ¥Od IOYISOd TTI9 XYL ZZ0C :=dToaur
00°"T9T'T TLTCdAY T20Z/ST/90 I1I9d XYL Z¢c0Z ONI ‘ONIDVWI TYIIDIA FAIIVIAD 69%2 ardd 1202/2c/90 0CISTE
00°000'T SIYIOL 6TTISTIE MDHHD
JIVAId JTOIHIA 00TSS 2SSO0SST 00°000°T
WNH-STH#AL X0F SIATL €LV 2sTta x=adoop-g LTIZSET :9dTOAUL
00°000°'T TL1ZdY 1202/61/50 LTCSET ONI HDIAY¥HS FYIL ALITIWOD LZT ar¥dd 1202/22/90 6TTISTE
S6°8%¥ SIYIOL 8TISTE MDIHD
BPOS-ddNsS NOISSHIDNOD 8L9 0¢€Z€S O00TO0T09 S6°8%F
eTOD BDOD 66L60CFELE :3DTOAUT
S6°8%P TLTZdY 1202/60/90 66L60C2VELE NN A0 OD ONITILOY ¥YTIO0D-¥D0D 611 aryd 1202/22/90 8ITSIE
¥8°9¢C FIVIOL LTTISTE ADHHD
TdNd dTOIHIA 0TLES O00TOTIO0S ¥8°SC
9N jeoq jxom T1eb 9° . 2€00TcC0C :adTOAUL
¥8°5C TLTZdY TZ0Z/T0/90 2e00120¢ DTT SAD0A NOLAITD LTIT ardd 1202¢/2Z/90 LTITISTE
88°0¢6 SIYLOL 9TTISTIE MDEHD
DSdEd TIAd IDIOANI
LAN LNVIIYM od dILVd ANT IDIOANI HWUN JOANdJA HJAL dILVd XHD ON ADdFHO
9908 pungd Texausd HE-63D 00TOT 00T :INQODOVY HSYD
qspysode TYNJNOL SINIWISINESIA HSYD d/V¥ NoATS069
9 g 3I9s8Q JUNOK JO UMOJ ST:LT 12Z0Z/9T/90




LANJALNI /TIVNA OPTSS 000TZCT ST°90C
SILOdS IOH LINYHILNI 12028250 :=d1OAUTL
ST°90¢ TLTZdY 120C2/22/S0 12028250 ALITIHON L3IV 699C ardd Tz0Z/TZ/90 0€ISTE
88°C6¢ IVLOL 6CISTE ADHHD
SHNOHd 113D 0€TSS O0CEO0PPT 88°C6¢EC
S3onI3 ® JOTYD I03 sabieyd eiep 3  [[9D 12028250 :9dToAUT
88°C6¢ TLTZdY TZ0z/22/S0 TZ0Z8CSO ALITIEON IL3LVY 8¢t¥< dlrdd TZ0Z/2Z/90 6CTISIE
€V 69S TIYIOL 8CTISTIE ADEHD
SHENOHd TT1dD 0€TSS O0O0STSST 00°0S
SHNOHd TTdD 0€TSS TSSO0SST 00°0ST
SENOHd T1T3D 0ETSS OOTOSST £€¥ 69¢
rd TIId dNOHA4 120Z8ZS0 :@dToAaul
€V 699 TLTZdY Tz0Z/22/S0 T2028¢2S0 LINLSYIA 861 ardd 120Z/22%/90 8ZISIE
€9 VPT TAIVILOL LTISTE ADHHD
YHALSYWIOdIVH-SANOHd 113D 68Z%8 0€T1SS O00IOT09 €9 ¥¥T
sauoyd TT=20 12028250 :3adToaUT
€9 PPT TLTZaY 1zZ02/22/S0 12028250 LINLSYIA Z86T1 alrydd 1z02/22/90 LZISTIE
90°6T SIVLOL 9CISTE ADHEHD
INIVW ® SYIVdEE NHD 00%SS O0OTOSST 90°6T
£d SHHSNJE HOLWIDS VLLZSSTHHN :9D0TOAUT
90°6T TLTCAY T20Z/81/S0 VLLZSSTIIN ANVdWNOD TUNHLSYA 86€T ardd 1zo0z/2z/90 9ZISIE
£€9°¢€6 SIVLOL SCTISTE ADHEHD
dDVYSN-INOHdJITAL 0ZT1SS 000TZZT £€9°€6
uotlels dung 221D 19330 2uoydesTal TZ€090 :9DTOAUT
£€9°¢€6 TLTIZdVY 1202/€0/90 TZ2€090 SNOILVDINNWWOD dALVAITOSNOD TO8T arydd 1Te0zZ/2Z/90 SZISIE
vz zs SIVLOL ¥PCISTE ADHHD
HOVSN-ANOHddTAL 0ZTSS 000T2ZT ¥Z°ZS
dIMM STTTaSawos auoydalal, TZ€090 :adTOAUT
vz zs TLTZdY 1202/€0/90 TZ2€090 SNOILYDINNWWOD QILVYAITOSNOD Z6LTI aldd 1202/22/90 ¥ZISTE
SS°1I80°C SIVILOL €CISTIE JADHHD
IOILON DITdnd S0Z9S O00STISST 08°G8
DJSHd TId FIDIOANI
LIN LNVIAYM od JLVA ANI dDIOANI HWVYN JOANIA JJAL dLVAd dYHD ON MDHEHD
9908 pungd Texsusd Hg-B3D 00TOT 00T :INNODDOVY HSYD
qgspysode TYNINOL SINAWISANGSIA HSYD d/V noL15069

3ISS8(J JUNOW JO uMmoj,

ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




00°0ST

IYIOL SETISTE

ADHEHD

LONAdd TIN=YIH
994 UTWpY WIH

STvesS

0080CCT 00°0ST

Z8Z0009T0-L0TCT

:9DTOAUT

00°0ST TLTCdY T202/ST/90 Z820009T0-L0TCT ONI DIWVUNAQ dNO¥D 0LPT ar¥d 1202/2%/90 SETISTE
00°C¢ET STIYLOL PEISTE MOHHD
LNIVAN 3 SYIVdIY NIED 00¥SS O00TOGST 00°CET
£d TYINIY ¥8D9IA HTOH 1SOd 0L09SG :¥dTOAUT
00°2¢T TLTCdAVY TZ0Z/01/90 0L0SS NOILVIS TIVINIY ANVID SSZ dr¥d 1Z0Z/2Z/90 PEISTIE
05 LEL'TT SIVLOL €E€TSTE AMDEHD
NOILDNJLSNOD OTLLS ¥S0000€ 00°0€9'L
S3 uotr3doadsur pue uTtwpe 86T ¥ €-IdW VPTISETITTO :=D0TOAaUT
00°0€9°L TLTZdY TZ0Z/ST/90 PISETTTO OTT SHLYIDOSSY 3 NOLSNHOL 4 9
ONIYIINIDNI ZTLLS €9000€9 0S LOT'¥®
sdwex o1Tqnd pue yjiou I03J bBurissutbus S8YETTIO0 :adDToAUIL
0S'LOT'¥ TLTCdY 1202/%1/90 S8PETTITO OTT SHLYIDOSSY 3 NOLSNHOL A4 D T162C aiyd 1202/22/90 €EISTE
9€°T9L'T FTIVLOL CTETISTE ADHHD
ONISSHASSVY-TdNA HTIDIHHAA 0TLES 0990CCT 96°TT
TaNA JTOIHIA 0TLES O00TOTIOS S8°¢€6
TaNd dTOIHIA €TTY OTLES OTTIOPPT €9°9LS
ayod _ANS 0C-TdNd HTDIHIA CITV 0TLES OTTOPPT TO SLY
wey sbpod 8T1-T1ANd FTDIHAA OTTY O0TLES OTTIORPPT 28 98%
WAV dXd Q04 LT-TdHNA JTDIHIA 60TV OTLES OTTIOPPT ZT°GOT
TOD A3YD 8T0C OFD-TINA Z0LZ 0OTLES 0LLOZZT L6°TT
TadNd AYW ¢88L°C I¥D CL 1€9 TZS0 :3dTOoAUT
9¢€°T9L'T TLTeCdvY TZ0Z/T€/S0 TZS0 OTT ADYINT JALSOd H ¥ T aryd 1202/2Z/90 ZEISIE
69°LTE CIYLIOL TETSTE 2IDHHD
SHNOHd TTHD 0ETSS TSS0CZT 69 %P
LANYALNI /TIVINI OPTSS 000TCCT 69°¢€CT
SENOHd TTdD 0E€TSS 0990CCT ZL 6V
SANOHd TTdD 6%6L8 0€TSS 0SS0ZCT 6S°60T
122250 HONOYHIL ¥YIVA ANV TTdD 120Z8CS0 :@dTOAUL
69°LCE TLTZdAVY 1Z0Z/22/50 12028¢S0 ALJAYS DOITdNd NON - LIAN LSJIA S86T ardd 1z02/zZ/90 IE€ISIE
S1°90¢ fTIVIOL 0€TSTE ADFHD
DSHA TLAd FDIOANI
LIN INVIIVM od dLVad ANI ADIOANI HWUN JOANIA FJAL dLYA XHD ON X4DIHD
9908 pungd Texsusd HA-63D 00TOT 00T :INNODDY HSYD
qgspysode TYNJNOL SLNIWISYNISIA HSVD d/¥Y noA15069

3I9S8Q JUNOK JO UMOL

ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




00°zee PIYIOL TPISTIE MDHHD

HONVINSNI ALITIEVIT 0T09S 000ZSST

00-zee

AIY Temauay AIV :=2dToaul
00" cZe¢g TLTZAY T20Z/T0/90 Temauay AIV D77 ‘AN TYNOILUYNJYAILNI 9NH 9LIT aldd 1202C/22/90 THISIE
€8°S00°'T SIYIOL OPISTICE ADHHD
INIVW NOILV.LS dhnd 0TZSS <TSS0GST €8°S00°T
WA-So23eTd Teas dung ddny urwIoH 988Z¥T00 :92TOAUI
€8°G00°'T TLTCAY 1202/%2/S0 9882Z¥%100 (OM-T0) -DNI dWNd SHAVH S8C arydd 1Z02/22/90 OBPISIE
00°0SL'T “IVLOL 6€TISTE ADHHD
SLOJd HSYD OI¥L-dTIVYMLAOS 888 0€£€SS 000TZZT 00°0SL'T
309 loxgd uorjejuswaTdwl aIEM]3JOS VZ¥0000LXI¥L :-3d0TOAUT
00°0SL’T TLTZAY 1202Z/1€/S0 PZ¥0000LXIdL SWHLSAS YIHLNAWOD SIAUIVH €8¢ aldd 1202/TZ/90 6€ISTIE
62 °8¢T SIYIOL 8€TISTE ADHHD
INIVIW ® SYIVdIY NID 00%SS O00TOSST %€ ¥ZT
£d S170d ANY SMIY¥DS LTBESYY :3DTOAUL
ve vl TLTZAY 1202/20/90 LTBEOV Y ANYdNWOD ¥HIWNT ANOWNVYH
LNANdINOA JAHLO 006€S <CSSO0SST 96° ¢
WNI-3ATBA UOTIRISY HAN OLOT - uteyp dooT s1butls ¥ 0L889V¥%F :@d0TOAUL
96" ¢ TLTZdAY T20Z/€0/90 0L889VY ANYANWOD ¥HFWNT ANOWWVH
INIVW ® SYIVddd NID 00%SS O0O0TO0SST 66°6
rd ddId DAd Z9v€Zvy :9dTOAUL
66°6 TLTZAY TZ0zZ/12/S0 zoveehvy ANYdNOD ¥HIWNT ANOWWVH Z6SZ aryd 1202/22/90 B8ETISTE
£9°8¢C SIVLOL LETISTE JADEHD
SIY0Td/SONIYOON-d1N0A TZILS OO0TOTOS 99°96
SOIAYY-dI1n0d TO¥PLS OOTOTO09 L6 TPT
sa1Tddns eutieuw 9/060Z0M :9DTOAUI
£€9°8¢¢C TLTCAY 1202/€0/90 9/060Z0M ONI ANIVYW NOLITIWYH 89¢ ardd 1202/22/90 LEISTE
S¥ 28T SIYIOL 9¢TISTE piekcize)
LNIVIW ® S¥IVdId NID 00%SS O00TOSST S¥ 281
£d SHHOLVYT PO9E€TISL :@dToaul
SH 28T TLTCAY 1202/21/S0 POETTISL dTaIAYIVAd d H LOZ ardd 1202/22/90 9€TSTE
OS5dd TLd JFOIOANI
L3N INVIIVM od dLVd ANI HDIOANI HAWUN JOONIA IddAL JILVd XHD ON dDdHD
9908 pund Texausd HL-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODDVY HSVD
qspysode TYNINOL SINIWIASANGSIA HSVD d/V noAT5069
6 a 319890 JUNOK 3JO UMOT ST:LT TZOZ/9T/90




(AR A=) TLTZavY 1202/01/90 LTLOZ ONI DJI¥IDITI W O W

INIVW 3 SYIVdId NID 00¥SS 9990SST 00°9ST
WH-IOJO0W IB8MOTE UOTIRISY HAN MSN DPOITM Z¥90¢ :9dtTOAUL
00°9ST TLTZav Tzoz/Le/so Zv90¢ ONI DIdIDATA W D W €TV dlid TT0Z/TZT/90 8¥ISTE
00°SL FIVIOL LPISTE MDFHD
ONINIVIL 00T¥S 0LLOZZT 00°SL
‘SIeuTgeM [EN3IATA - Buturexl 0OFD TYTS6€000T :9DTOAUL
00°SL TLTZdY 1202/%0/90 TPTS6€000T YIOHW 0.8 aldd 1202/2Z/90 LPISTIE
00°Sc TIVIOL 9%1ISTE 2DdHD
SATHSYIIWIW 3 S3NA 00Z%¥S 0990¢ZT 00°SC
SdNA dIHSYTIWAN 18200 :°dTOAUL
00°S¢ TLTCavY TZ0Z/0T/90 8200 dNO¥YD ¥Ydsn SID INIVYW 188 aidd 1z0T/TZ/90 9¥%TISTE
00°sc FIVLOL SPISTE ADFHD
ONINIVIL 00T¥S 0€E0PPT 00°GC
bututexy aa TZ-TSZT-ISAN :9dToAUL
00°s¢ TLTZdY 1202/%2/S0 TZ-TSCTI-ISdN IALILSNI ADIAYES JIYId ANIVH OTLT ardd 1202/22/90 SPISTIE
00°0LT SIVLOL PPISTE 20dHD
dN TS-INIVW 3 JIVdIEd Dd71d TEV 002SS 0€EOPPT 00°G8
uoTidadsut aaTyutads ATxsizenb T-3e3s 0b6%S :9@0TOAUT
00°S8 TLTZdY 1202/10/90 0vevs NOILO3LOYd HYIA INIVW
AS €S-INIVW 3 JIVddd_ 95dTd €€V 00TSS 0€€0¥¥PT 00°G8
uotidadsutr xeTjutads Arxajxenb ¢ -3jeas I¥6¥%S :20TOAUT
00°58 TLTCavY TZ0Z/T0/90 Iv6vs NOILOHLOYd FJIA INIVW TZ¥h ardd 120T/2Z/90 HHISTE
€V 06L'T FIVIOL €PISTE ADHEHD
INIVIN 3 SYIVAIY NID 00%SS 8990SST €% 06L'T
WT-dIMM HS SSURIqUSN 2ITelTues wWaTAX "VA 02Z 09GLT :@dTOAUT
€V 06L°T TLTCAdv T20Z/T0/90 09sLe NOILVYOdY0D YAHVIW HHL €S6 ardd 120T/TZ/90 €HISIE
LL 6V9'€TT IVIOL CTVISTE ADHEHD
NOILDNILSNOD 0TLLS ¥S0000€ LL 6%9°€CT
€ IdW sjuawsnoxdwt 86T/€ A dIA 86T/€ld T# ddV¥ :9d2TOoAUL
LL 679 "€CT TLTZav 120Z/82/S0 dIA 86T/€l¥ T# dd¥ I NOILDNAYLSNOD SNOS ¥ NVAJOL 4 d LTI ardd 1202/22/90 ZTHISTE

DSHA TLA IDIOANI

LIAN LNVAAYM od JILVA ANI IDIOANI HWUN JOANIA HJXL JLVA AHD ON XDIHD
9908 punjg Texsusp HA-BID 00TOT 00T :INNODDVY HSVD
gspysode TYNINOL SINIWISINESIA HSVD d/V noi15069

0T a 319590 IUNOR 3JO umog ST:LT TTOZT/9T/90




97291 FIYIOL ZSTISTE MDAHD
M0S ¥FAAQ-SNI HAIT 0TZZS 0080ZZT 0S'T¥
ddns-sxadn TSLVT 00T 9€°22
DTseq-SyAdN 0SL¥bZ 00T 06°86
INIWLSNCAY ¥VHYW SONIN WAIWANd AYKW 90€€00€ ITO :adTOAUI
9L 291 1L1ZdY 1202/10/S0 90€€00€ ITO INIWHAIILIY SHIAOTAWA DITENd ANIVW TTST  dIdd 1202/22/90 ZSISIE
60 €LT TIYIOL TSISTE MDHEHD
INIWNGINDE ¥FHLO 006€S ZSSO0SST 0S° 8¢
W3-doys juTeW HAN IOJ Ia3epM TZS0 $IS6 :@dTOAUL
05" 8¢ 1L1ZdY 1202/1€/S0 1250 ¥IS6 ¥ALYM ONI¥AS IJASAA LNOOW
SIITddNS ADIA40 000€S 0080%%T 0Z 29
TeaUaI I3TO00D-AIBATTSP 1Z0Z/S0 1250 L9G9Z :8dTOAUI
0Z°29 TLTZdAY 1202/1€/S0 TZS0 L9592 ¥ILYM ONI¥S I¥ISAA LNNOW
SAITddNS FDIAA0 000€S O0E€E€OPPT 6T TOT
Is3em burMuTtag 1250 0%P66 :=DTOAUI
6T°TOT TLTZaY TZ0Z/T€/S0 TZS0 0P¥66 YALYM DNI¥S I¥ISAA INNOW
SHITddNS ADIAA0 000€S 0TT0ZZT 0T TL
I93eM 9DTIFJO 1250 626% :9>TOAUT
0Z TL TL1ZdY 1202/1€/S0 1250 626% ¥AILYM DNI¥AS L¥ISAA INNOW 20S ar¥d 120Z/22/90 ISTISIE
Z8°S¥e TIYIOL OSTISTE MDIHD
INIVW ® SYIVAEd NAD 00%SS O00TOSST T8 S¥Z
£g TOYINOD INAQOA 96€0Z8% :adTOAUT
Z8°S¥C TLTZ4Y 1202/%0/90 96€028¥ ONI S3IDIA¥ES LSAd NY¥IAOW Z¥TZ  dldd 1202/2Z/90 0SISTE
00°99L°'1S2 PIYIOL 6FTSTE MDAHD
TOOHDS HOIH AW 10Z6S 00TS66T 00°99L°1ISC
T00yds ybTH IQW IOJ JUSWSSISSE Bunp 1290 :@dTOAUT
00°99L°1S¢ TL1ZdY T202/10/90 1290 TOOHDS TYNOIDAY IAW 69% aryd 1202/22/90 6%ISTE
s 81S'€ TIYIOL 8FISTE MOFHD
AS €S-INIVW % ¥IVdAY DATIH €€V 002SS 0EEOPPT 00°608°C
€ uoTiels I037 Juawsoerdeax UBTT gdT ITL0Z :9dTO0AUT
00°608°‘C TLTZav T202/01/90 T1L0T ONI DIdIDATE W D W
SHDIAYES NOILDAJSNI AAMAS 0€SPS TSSO0SST 2S5 €SS
s butatm 851330 SL LTILOT :3dTOAUI
DSHEA 11d ADIOANI
1IN INVINVM 0d  HIVd ANI FDIOANI dWYN JOANHA EdXL  AIVA MHD ON JDFHD
9908 Ppung Texausp HA-BD 00TOT 00T :INAODDV HSVD
gspysode TYNINOL SINIWASYNESIA HSYD d/¥ noL15069
Tt d 318S8Q JUNON JO UMOJ ST:LT TZ0Z/9T1/90




00°¢C¢tT

IVLOL 6STSTE ADHEHD

LNIVIW WIVIV HAAIA 0Z8%S 0E€€OVPPT 00 CET
putiojTuow wreTe ATxajzxenb ¢ -3eas 1Z6STL :3d>TOAUT
00°cetT TLTZ4AY T202/10/90 TZ6STL ONI ALTYNDES ISVYODOVAS F8L ardd 1202/22%/90 6STISTIE
LY €8T SIVIOL 8STISTE ADHHD
IOV.LSOd 0PTES O0TT0ZTT LV €8T
SEDANIIAYD Z - YIALIAW AO0A INI ¥%9€8¢8T0OT :9dTOAUL
LY €8T TLTZ4dY 1202/L0/90 ¥%9€828T0T SAMOd AANLId L9ET ardd 1202/22/90 8STISTE
20°869 IYIOL LSTISTE MDHEHD
IOVSN-ENOHdATAL 0ZTSS 000TCZT 20°869
sbxeyo suoydaTal 1290 :92TOAUT
20°869 TLTZ4dY TZ0Z/0T/90 1290 SNOILVYDINNWNOD LIO O0TITZ aryd 1Z0Z/22/90 LSTISTE
08°698°S SMIYIOL 9STISTE ADFHD
LNIVN 3 SYIVddy NID 00%SS O00TOSST 08°698°'S
£d DNIIYLS ENIT ¥IINID 9¢8¢C :adTOoAUT
08°698°'S TLTZaY 120Z/80/90 9¢€8¢ ONI ‘ENIT-JHL-NO L6SZ ardd 1202/22/90 9STISTE
€6°¥C SIY¥IOL SSTSTE ADHHD
6L-dIVddd HTOIHAA 60€Y 00TSS 0€E€0PPT €6° %C
SAS93TS UDIATY IaTTex] S6¥96¢€ :@dTOAUT
€6°¥C TLTZ4Y 1202/L0/90 S6v96¢ SI¥Yd OLNV TYLSVYOD 0912 ardd 1202/22/90 SSISTE
99°€¥0'TT SIVIOL $STISTE MDEHD
WO¥D ddA ONIddIL Z0SSS O00STSST 99°€¥0'TT
S3 DYdAd 03 323 dr3 T[easeod I0J DN €LTE :3dTOAUL
99°€¥0'TT TLTZ4Y T20Z/20/90 €LTE JALLINNOD MAIATY TYdIDINAW 9SE€T ar¥dd 1202/22/90 ¥SISTE
96°0SZ'ST PIYLOL €STISTE MDHHD
¥4 3 Ad-sx=adn €SLYC 00T 96°0SZ'ST
WNATINIId AYIN TZS0 :9dToAUT
96°0SC'S2 TLTZ4dY 1z0Z/T€/S0 12S0 LNIWAIILIY SHHXOTAWI DITdNd INIVW PEP dry¥d 1202¢/2TZ/90 €STISTE
OSHd TLAd dADIOANI
LIN INYIIVM od dLVd ANI IOIOANI HWUYN JOONIA HJAL dILV¥VAd AHD ON XDIHD
9908 pung Texsusp HA-53D 00TOT 00T :LNNODDV HSVYD
gspysode TUYNJNOL SINIWISYNESIA HSVD d/V¥ noAT5069

3I9S9Q JUNOK JO UMOJ

ST:LT TZ0OZ/9T/90

2]



00°09L'T FIVIOL POTSTE ADHHD
INIVIN % JIVddad DATd 00ZSS 000ZSST 00°09L'T
£d DNINVHTD dDIJJ40 NMOL ¢S0T :9dToaul
00°09L'T TL124avY Tz0Z/10/90 ZS0T JIYDON LJJd0d NOSVYL TLSZ dLidd 1202/2Z/90 %9ISTE
L6 €EEL FIVIOL €91ISTE 2IDHEHD
SWJOAINN 008€S OTTOP¥PT L6 E€ET
JoTyD - saued TeDTIDEI Ianeld SE€TIS :9@dToaul
L6 EET TLTZdAY TZ0Z/LZ/S0O SETS AJOWIVY INFATIAL TLLZ ardd 1202/22/90 €91ISTE
og-oct FIVIOL Z9TSTE ADHHD
d34 HOdL/LI 0SZ¥%S 0080VPT 0€°0CT
120Z/S0 sabxeyd 3ITNDITD 62620000000T20CS0TIHE :=dTOAUT
0€°02T TLTZdAY 1202/0Z/S062620000000T20250TId ANIVA 40 FIVLIS ‘qFANSVIAL LBET dLid 1Z0Z/2Z/90 TI9TISTE
00°8¢9 FIVLIOL TI9TISTE ADIHD
Md-seng uoTtun vLve 00°8¢€9
sdna aNare 1290 :@dToAUuT
00°8¢€9 TLTZdAY 1202/€0/90 1290 0PEH# TYDOT NOINN SYILSWYAL ¥69 arydd 1202/22/90 T9ISTE
2y 8¢EV SIYIOL 09TSTE MDEHD
SHITddNS dHDIAH0 000€S OTTOCZT ZL ¥6
sqo3 Koy ® sot7ddns 90TJJO pua-IeSZ TPSLY6CZP8Z :2D0TOAUT
ZL V6 TLTCAY TZ0Z/ST/SO IvSLVv6CP8C NVYId LIdE¥D SHTIIYIS
SAITdANS dDI440 000€S OTTO0ZZT 66°0S
sat7ddns @9330) TS80€T6¥8BZ :2DTOAUI
66°0S TLTZdvY TZ02/S2/S0 TS80¢€T6¥8C NYITd LIA3dD SHTIAVLS
SHITddNS dDIA40 000€S OTTOZZT ¥6°CST
zaded Adoo ‘sarTddns 993300 ‘ST9]eR] SS9IPPY TT91998%8Z :9dTOoAUI
¥6°¢ST TLTZ4av 1z0Z/S2/S0 TI9T998%8C NVId IIA3dD SHTAVLS
SHITddANS dDIA40 000€S OTTOCZT 66767
SOATIP qunyl TLLBYPS8V8C :=@DTOaUI
66°6V TL12dvY 1202/ST/S0 TLLBYS8P8C NY1d LIQH¥D SHTAVYLS
SHITddNS dDIA40 000€S OTTOZZT 8L 68
ebpTtilae) I93UTId 165€895€8C :adTOAUL
8L°68 TLTZAY 120Z/S0/S0 16S€895¢€8C NVYTId LIJIdD SHATIVLS ¥L8 dlLidd 120Z/2Z/90 091STIE
OJSdA TLd JIDIOANI
LIN LNWVAIVYM od JILVA ANI ADTIOANI AWYN JOANIA JFJAL dLV¥d XHD ON MDIEHD
9908 Pund Texsusd HE-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODODY HSVD
gspysode IYNINOL SINIWASANGSIA HSVD d/V noi15069
3I989Q JUNOW FO uUMmMOg ST:LT TZTOZT/9T/90

€T d




HSVYIT dHId0D 0Z2€SS 000TZCT 00°08¢€
oseal xoTdod pue Ixajutxad 90€L60SPY :oD0TOAUT
00°08¢ TLTZ4AY T202/€0/90 90€L60SYY DONI FDNUYNIJ INIWAIN0F MNVE S N
YANNYOS -HSVHT TZESS 000TCZT ¥L POT
9SPe9T I2UuedS SZVP99TP¥y :oD0TOAUT
YL V0T TLTZAY 1202/S2/S0 SZHO9TvPY ONI FDONUNIA INANAINOA MNYd S N S9%T ardd 1202/22/90 TLISTIE
09°08¢ SIYLOL OLTISTE ADEHD
dIMM HIN-LINJALNI/ITYD €69T 0STSS 000TZZT 09°08¢
dIMM HEN 3Isux=3lul TZ€090T000¥SL69 :=dTOAUT
09°08¢ TLTCdvY T20Z/€0/90 TZ€090T000%SL6ES JI1dY0 YINIUYM dHWIL €69T ardd 120c¢/2c/90 OLISIE
00°Gg FIYILOL 69TSTE ADHHD
1d3d FDITOd-LANIALNI /JTIYD TLLT 0STSS 000TZZTI 00°SS
IBMOJL, SUOTIeDTUNWWOD TITH Yyodoog T20€S0T0COVCETL :=@DTOAUT
00°S9 TLTZdY T202/0€/S0 T20€S0TOCOPCETL dI9dY0 dINIYM HWIL 0TISZ ardd 1202/2Z/90 691STE
09°'STV STTYLOL 89TSTE ADEHD
¥YD AMOH-LANVALNI /FTEYD €LLT 0STSS 000TZCT 09°S1V¥
obexeb AemybTtH 32uxa1iul TZ0E€S0T06295658 :aDTOAUTL
09°S1¥ TLTZdY TZ0zZ/0€/S0 TZ0ESO0T06295658 d79dV0 JANAVYM HNIL €LLT ardd 1z02/cc/90 89TISTE
09°97%C FIVIOL LOTSTIE ADHHD
LANIILNI /3TIYD 0STSS O0O0TOTO09 09 9¥%C
Iduiem auwtl TZ8CS0T06EVLETL :3DTOAUT
09°9%¢C TLTCdY 1z02/82/S0 TZ8ZSOTO6EPLETL JTdYD dANJUYM JWIL OLET ardd 1z02/22/90 L9TISTIE
[ 44AR°Y4) SIVIOL 99TSTE ADIHD
AS €H#1S HIIJA-LINJIALNI/ITAYD 9T9T 0STSS 000TCCT PC GC¢E
€ # UOT1®]S 9IT4 2JIdUI23UT TZE090TO0LZO99CTL :3@dToaUT
vz SZe TLT2dvY 1202/€0/90 TZE090TOLZO99ETL dTdY0 dINIYM dHWIL 9191 ardd 1z0Z/22/90 991IGTE
TL E€EE STIVLOL S9TSTE AMOEHD
HS CHLS FYIA-LANIALNI/ITIYD LELT 0STSS 000TZCT TL €€€
Z # UuOT3E1S O©ITJ 2I3UISJIUT TZZ090T08PTLPS8 :=DToAaUT
TL EEE TLTZdY T20Z/20/90 TZZ090T08VPILYSS JTdYD dANIYM HWNIL LELT ar¥dd 1202/22/90 S9ISTIE
DSdd TLd IDIOANI
LAN INYIIVM od JLYA ANI HOIOANI HWUN JOONIA IFJXL HIVA XHD ON MDHAHD
9908 pund Texsusd HA-63D 00TO0T 00T :INNODDVY HSVD
qgspuysode IYNIAOL SINAWISINESTIA HSVD d/¥ noA15069
3I9S9Q JIUNOW JO uMmolL ST:LT TTOZ/ST/90

vl d

TR




0e°"S¥ TL124dY T202/91/S0 TZ9TS0 S-%ZELSOOT JIMOd INVSIIA
ALIDI¥LOATH 0T0SS 0002SST ZE€°91
£d NOILVLS LYOJWOD HS UMY § TZLTSO 0-%9TICESOT :=dTOAUT
e 9T TLTZa¥Y TZ02/LT/S0 TZLTSO 0-%91C€ESOT dIMOd INVSHIA
AS £€S-ALIDIY¥LOITI €€y 0TO0SS O0€e€0¥PPT 6€°8ST
TIT1Tq A3T10oT309T2 ATyjuow € UOTILIS TZ0ZS0 9-8%ELSO0OT :3dTOAUTL
6€°8ST TLTZdaY TZ0Z/02/S0 T202S0 9-8%€LSO0T dIMOd LNVSHHA
ALIDIY¥LOATH 0T0SS L990SST LL"Z68'T
W3-DOTIJ03TH dIMM AS HMM 0806T TZLTISO L-$PPELSOOT :9DTOAUT
LL°Z68'T TLTZdY TZ02Z/LT/S0O TCLTSO L-P¥ELSOOT YIMOd LNVSIIA
ALIDI¥LOATH 0T0SS L990SST €T GLT
WZ-DTI309Td Sd AXIRIQTIT AS HMI ZTLOT TZLTISO H-LPELSOOT :9DTOAUT
€C°SLT TL1Z4aVY TZ0Z/LT/SO TZLTSO #-LPELSOOT JIMOd LNVYSHIA
ALIDI¥LOHATH 0T0SS L990SST oL ¥ZC
WH-DTI3D3TH Sd =9°U=4 AS HMI POPT TZ9TS0 Z-9%€LSO00T :=dTOoAUI
oL vce TLTZdY 1Z202/91/S0 TZ9TS0 Z-9%€LSO0T YIMOd LNVSYIA
ALIDIY¥LOETH 0T0SS L990SST LP 6ET
WI-DOTIADSTH Sd A33ID uosqeqg HMM Z€8 TZLTSO 8-6%€LS0O0T :9dToAaUI
LY 6¢T YA R4\ 4 T202/LT/SO TZLTSO 8-6%ELSO0T dIMOd INVSHYIA ZP8T ardd 1202/22/90 ¥LISTE
IS TI9T'T FTIVIOL ELTSTE ADHHD
INIVWN NOILV.LS dRhNnd 0TZSS <ZSS0SST 90°9¢8
WH-Sd 23I93I35 BaS I03 G0L I8dnpsuea] ISdA 96C¥%C9 :°dTOAUT
90°9¢8 TLTZdAY T202/%0/90 962%29 JoogdanNTd v¥sn
dIindd gyl 0Z8¢€S ZSS0SST S¥°GC¢
WI-saysTQ Ta3ad ‘Sa[330d QOd 'SauUeIqWSW 2doxd 0d ¥¥00T9 :9dTOoAUT
Sv-sce TL1ZdvY T20Z/02/S0 ¥¥00T9 200g93NTId ¥sSn ZvL dLidd 1202/2Z/90 €LISTIE
L8729¢C STIVLOL CLISTE MDHHD
SWJOAINN 008€S ZSS0SST 66°00T
NI -SWwIoITUN MM Zyv0¥8CLZO :=dTOAaUT
66°00T TLTZdY TZ02/€0/90 Zyvov8CLZO ddod LSYIAINN
SINJOJ INN 008¢€S OOTOSST 88°90T
SWIOAINN 008€S 00SZSST 00°0C
SWJO4INN 008¢€S 00STSST 00°S€E
WI-SwIoJTun D¥d/MSW/AMH TvP0¥8ZLZ0O :8dTOAUI
88 T9T TLTZAY 1202/€0/90 Ivv0¥8CLZO dd0d LSUIJINN LEL ardd 1202/22/90 ZLTISIE
YL v8Y FIVIOL TLTISTE ADIHD
OS3d TLd IDIOANI
LIN LNYVIAVM od JLVA ANI IDIOANT HWNYN JOaNIA IJAL JLVA AHO ON dDHHD
9908 Pung Texsusd HI-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODDVY HSVD
qspysode TYNJNOL SINIWISINLISIA HSVD d/Y noA15069
31958 JUNOW 3FO uMmog ST:LT TZOZ/9T/90

ST d




0T " TL TLTZaY 120Z/20/90 TZZ090 6-SEELSO0T YIMOd INVYSIIA
ALIDI¥LOATH 0T0SS 8990GST 89°CIT
WH-OTXA09TA Sd 240D Adexd HMM Lb9 TCE090 €-LEELSOOT :=dTOAUT
89°C1TT TLTZdY 1202/€0/90 TZE090 €-LEELSOOT JdIMOd INVSHIA
ALIDIYLIDATH 0T0SS 9990SST S9°8¢L
NI-DTI3D92TH Sd 1I99I1S BSOS HMM 6L6T TZE€090 9-%EELSO0T :=dTOAUT
S9°8¢L TLTZAY 1202/€0/90 TZE090 9-%€€LS00T ddIMOd LNVYSIIA
ALIDIYLOATH 0TO0SS O00TOTO9 00°08¢
ITomod eutIRW UMY 09LT TZ€090 S-9T€8GSOT :8@dToauTl
00°08¢ TLTZdAY 1202/€0/90 TZ€090 S-9T€8SSOT JIMOd INVSIIA
ALIDIYLOATH 0T0SS O00TO0T09 TS 0¢€
Tomod uswsyd3lehk ymy Q0T TZT090 €-€TELSO0T :3dTOAUT
16°0¢ TLTZdvY TZ0Z/T0/90 TZT090 €-€2€LSO00T YIMOd INVSYIA
ALIDIVLOHTH 0T0SS O00TO0TO09 TCT 0%6
ITamod eutIew UMY 00%S TZ€090 Z-0Z€€000T :®dTOAUTL
T2 0%6 TLTZAY 120Z/€0/90 TZE€090 Z-0CZEE000T YAMOd INVYSIIN
ALIDI¥LDETH 0T0SS O00TOT09 61 TS9
xomod euUTIBW UMY 08 TZZ090 €-STE€8SSOT :@dToaul
6T°1S9 TL1TZdY 1202/20/90 TZZ090 €£-9T€8SS0T dIMOd INVYSIIA
HS ¢S-ALIDIVLIDATH Zey 0T0SS O0t€0PPT OL ETT
1TTq A3ToTI309T2 ATyY3uow ¢ °3BIS UMY 659 TZ92S0 6-0%PELSO0T :=2dTOoAaUL
0L E€TT TLTZAY 1202/60/90 TC92S0 6-0PELSO00T YIMOd INVSIIA
ALIDI¥LDIETH 0T0SS 00€0T09 0% 9C
Tomod 339T3IRQ UMY €L TZPZS0 T-9€€LS00T :=dTOoAUT
ov-9¢ TLTZAVY T202/%2/S0 TZHyZS0 T-9€€LS00T dIMOd INVSJIA
ALIDIYLOATH 0T0SS 0020T09 €€ 8¢
Tomod Teas ymy 98 TZTESO ZT-ZEELSOOT :9dTOAUL
£€€°8¢ TLTZdY TZ0Z/T1€/S0 TZTES0 T-2EELS00T dIMOd LNVSIIA
ALIDIYLOATH 0T0SS O00TOSST LS ST
£d GATIA ILNVIDIVS L0E UMY 008T TZLTISO 6-TCELSOOT :=dTOoAUT
LSST TLTCdY TZ0Z/LT/S0 TCLTSO 6-TCELSOO0T JIMOd ILNVSIIA
STUYNDIS DId4AYIL ST0SS 0090%PT 6€°T€E
£d Z0T-86T TdAL Um¥ 90T TZLTSO L-0CELSOOT :9dTOAUL
6€° 1€ TLTZ4Y T202/LT/S0 TZLTSO L-0Z€ELSOOT ¥aMod INVSHIA
ALIDINLDATH 0T0SS 000CSST €¥ 0L
£rd LOY ILINN LAFNLS YIS UMY SS69 TCLTSO 8-9CELSO00T :-=dTOAUIL
€v" 0oL TLTZdY 1202/LT/S0 TZLTSO 8-SCZE€LSO0T daMOd INVYSYIA
ALIDI¥LOATE 0T0SS 00SZSST 0£°G¥F
£d S€v LINQ IS VIS UMy 66T TZ9T1S0 S-%CELSO0T :@dTOoauUT
DSHd TId IDIOANI
LAN INVIIVYM od JLVd ANI HADIOANI AWVYN JdOdNIA d4AL JIL¥Yd AHD ON XDIHD
9908 pung Texausp HA-53D 00TOT 00T :INNODDV HSVD
qgspysode IVNANOL SINIWIASYNESIA HSVYD d4/¥ noA15069
9T d 3ISSSQ JUNOW JO uMmoL ST:LT 1Z0Z/9T/90




00°59C

FIYIOL 8LISTE pitolchste]

SATHSYIGNAN 3 SANA 00Z¥S 0€€O0PPT 00°SSC
sanp diysaaquaw DAVI 120¢ seng :8dToAaul
00°55¢ TL12dY 1202/%1/90 1202 sang dIHSYIEWIN DAVI 00€ dlLid 1202/2Z/90 BLISTE
zz 60T $IYIOL LLISTE MDFHD
SWY04 INO 008ES O0EEOVPPT ¥L €9
sjued Aang T00 €8%9€TZ :=dTOAUL
VL €9 TLT2dY T202/60/90 T00 €8¥%9€1C ONI SHLVIDOSSY YIWLIM
SO INN 008€S OEEOPPT 8% S¥I
sjued Aang €8¥9€TC :9DTOAUL
8% SP1 TLTIZdY T2Z0Z/60/90 €8¥9€TC ONI SHLVIDOSSY ¥AWLIM 906 dLdd 1202/2Z/90 LLISTIE
06°68¢€ $IYLIOL 9LTISTIE MDHHD
SWYOJ INN 008€S OTTOPPT S6 ¥6T
uojbutixiey - sjoog Tox3ed €y68FC :9@dTOAU]L
S6° %61 TLTZdY T202/80/90 €V68¥C dOHS 1009 LIOJdYALNIM
SWYOJAINN 008€S OTIOPPT S6 V6T
quooabpg - sjoog Toxjed S¥68FZ :9d0TOAUT
S6° 961 TLTe2dY T2Z0Z/80/90 Sv68VC dOHS 100€ LYOdYIALNIM E€LL dlryd 120Z/2Z/90 9LISTE
SL'T66'T TIYIOL SLISTE MDFHD
1I1dnvy 0ZSPS O0TT0ZZT SL T66°'T
3TPNY Yysed SE€ISZ :9DTOoAUT
SL°Z66'T TLTZdY 120Z/11/90 SE1ST ¥dD NYWAYM M SIWYL €SL alyd 120Z/2Z/90 SLISTE
91°86%°'8 IYIOL PLISTE MDEHD
ALIDIYIDATA 0T0SS 8990SST LTI €L6'T
WH-DTI309Td dLMM HS HMM 09L8T TZT090 €-ZHELSOOT :9DTOAUTL
LT €L6T TL1ZdY T20Z/10/90 TZT090 €-THELSOOT ¥IMOd LINVSIIA
ALIDI¥LIDATH 0T0SS 6990SST S9°2Z9L
WE-DTX2ID3TA Sd 391D I3330 HMM 09¢€2 TZZ090 L-6EELSO0T :9DTOAUI
S9°2Z9L TLTZdY T202/20/90 TZZ090 L-6€ELSO0T YIMOd LNVSIIA
ALIDI¥LOATH 0T0SS 8990S6ST 01 1L
WI-DTX2109Td Sd AXexqrT HS HMM TLE TZZ090 6-SEELSO0T :3@dTOAUL
DSdaA 1T1d IDIOANI
LAN INVIYVYM od IILVA ANI FDIOANI IWVYN JOaNdA HJAL  FIILVA MHD ON MDIHD
9908 Ppund Texauad Hd-53D 00T0T 00T :INNODDVY HSVD
gspysode TYNJNOL SINAWHSINESIA HSVD d/V¥ noA15069
3I959Q JUNOW JO uUMOJ, ST:LT TZOZ/91/90

LT d




€9°¥8%'909 *xx TYLOL ONYVYD xxx

Z9°¥80°C¢ It S, 1Ldd IYIOL
TO 00%'¥LS 89 SYMOFHD JILNI¥d TYIOL
LNNOWY LNNOD
€9°%8%'909 *xx TYLOL LNNODDVY HSYD xx=x 6L SUDEHD 40 ¥YHIWNN
qspysode TYNYNOL SINIWISANEISIA HSYD d/V¥ noA15069

8T a 3I9S9Q JUNOR JO UMOL ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




99°1.25'€58 99°L25'€S8 TYIOL T6/21/1202 TYNJNOL
€0°€¥0’'LYT €0 €EV0‘LVT TYIOL SATIINA QILVIINAD WILSAS
AT TLTZdVY TZ02/22/90
09°8L¥'ZT punj usd Id 0T0S€-009 ddY
AT TLTZdY 120ZT/2Z/90
09°8L¥'2T YNIJVIW-1d 090S€-00T d4dY
AT TLTZdY 1202/22/90
€% %95 ‘vET punjy uso 1d 0T0S€-00€ dd¥
AT1 TLTZdVY 1202/22/90
€b ¥9S'¥veC dWI dy¥d-41d 0€0S€-00T ddav
€9 %87 °909 €9°¥8¥%°909 TYIOL ¥AHAAT TYNINID
TUNINOL SINAWISANESIA HSYD dv A1 TLT2dY 1202/22/90
09°8LY'ZT 9TqeAeg S3UNODOY 0000Z-009 dd¥
TYNINOL SINAWISINGSIA HSYD dv A1 TLTZdAY 120Z/22/90
€% 595 ¥beT 2TqedAed s3unoooy 0000Z-00€ dd¥
TYNJNOL SINFWISANGSIA HSYD dv ATT TL1ZdY 1202/22/90
€9 $8%'909 9908 pung TeIU3D HE-6XD 00TOT-00T dd¥
TYNJNOL SINAWASANGSIA HSYD d¥ AT TLT2ZdY 1202/22/90
09 T¥¥'6S¢€ aTqeAed s3unoooy 0000Z-00T dd¥Y
16 21 120Z
Dsaa ANIT € 39 2 439 T J3d4  DSHAQ INC HIVA J4F
hA dacce:io) l1d3a g0 L DSEA INNODDV INQODDY DIS
IND ¥dd AVIX
nokT5069 :MIATD
QELYIYD F9 OL SHIAINA TYNINOL
qspysode TYNYNOL SINIFWASYNESIA HSVD d/V nok15069

6T d

31I9S9Q 3JUNOK JO UMOJ

ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




09°8L%'CT 09-8LV'CT IYLOL aNN4g
09°8LY'CT punjy usH 1d 0T0S€-009
09°8LY'CT a1qeAed S3UNODDY 0000Z-009
1zoz/zz/90 16 C¢T Tcoc BUTI®N 009
€v %95 '¥ET €V %95’ vEC IVLOL aNNJg
€% ¥9S'¥eC puny usd 1Ld 0T0SE-00¢€
€V 995 ' vET 9T7qeAed S3UNODDY 0000C-00¢€
1202/22/90 16 ZT 1oz s3oaloxg teatded 00¢
€9°¥8%’'909 €9°¥8%'909 TYLOL aNNAg
09-8L¥V‘CT UNIJVYN-1a 090S€-00T
€% %95 'bET dWI dv¥D-4Ld 0€0S€-00T
09 1v¥'6S€E o1geAed S3UNODDY 0000Z-00T
€9 °¥8%'909 9908 Ppung [exdusd HE-63D O0TOT-00T
1zoz/ze/90 16 ¢T Tcoc pung Teasus) 00T
NOILdIY¥DSHEA LNNODOVY INNODDVY
LIAIAD LI93d FILVA J4"F  IND ¥3d IVEX aNnd
QALVIYD Hd OL SHIYINH T¥NINOL
qspysode TYNJNOL SINIWISIYNLESIA HSVD d/V¥ noA15069

3I9S9@ JUNOK JO UMOJL

ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90




xx Bunox est1 Aq psiersusH - IJOJAY A0 ANH xx

€0°€V0'LPC €0°€%0‘'L¥C TYIOL
09°8LY'CT BUTI®N 009
€% ¥9S’'vET sa3oaloxg Teatded 00¢€
€0°€EV0‘LYT pung TeIsusd 00T
WOo¥dd dNA oL 3Nd annd

ILVIYD F9 OL SHIYINA TVNINOL

gspysode IYNJNOL SINIAWISIYNESIA HSVD d4/V noATS5069
3I9s8Q JUNOW JO UMOJ, ST:LT TZ0Z/9T/90

134 d




poom A Aauy099 uewiey) ddIA ‘UeH [ maynen

uewpnq | eyuen uewuiey) ‘Asjnesep g uyor

IETHBEIELS

"3|NP3yIs Siy} ul paweu
saijed ayl olun Aed 01 pa1dalip aJe nOA pue sweu yoes jsuiede 13s wns ay}
anoqe pais!| suoneudosdde ay3 03 ajqeadieyd pue anp si 313yl eyl AJ11uad 01 st Siy g

61922911 $ SININISYNESIA TVLOL
9rTS9 yanoiyy 0€TS9 ‘SYIGNNN HDIHD
66STT y3nouyy 1474 ‘SYIGNNN 3DINQV
120Z ‘TT dunf ‘3Lva XD3HD
8¢Cli¢ #dd LINVHIVM
AINVHIVM TI0HAVd

143S3d INNOW 40 NMOL



POOM A A31)J039 uewieyd adiA ‘UeH [ Maynep

uewpng 1 eyuen uewiey) ‘Asjnedeyy g uyor

S333YD PapIoA
sjuawAed HOV
sjuawAed 21u01129|3

sjuawded x2ay)

‘9|npayas siyy ul paweu

HIETTHLEIELN

saiued 3yl olun Aed 01 paldalip aie noA pue aweu yoes jsulede 13s wns ayl
anoge paisl| suonendosdde ayy 01 ajgeadieyd pue anp si a1yl 1eyl AJ13432 01 S siy|

90°€06°CT $ :SININISYNGSIA TVLOL
- S V/N yanosypy V/N “Y3ILINNN XD 40 143
Z $ v/N ysnoayy V/N ‘Y3IGNNN L43
- ) V/N ysnoay} V/N “4IGNNN HDIHD
90°€06°CT ) 60TSTE ydnoayy 801STE YIGWNN HO3IHD
120Z ‘6 aunf :31va MO3HD

69T¢C #dV LINVHIVYM

LNVYYVYM 319VAVd SINNOIDV ¥d '8 ILVLS ‘ANE
14353d INNOIN 40 NMOL



Lisa Young
L~

From: Geoffrey Wood

Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 5:01 PM

To: Lisa Young

Subject: Re: UPDATED: Warrant AP#2169 & PR#2128 Approval Request

Approved with amended totals,
Geoff
Get Qutlook for i0S

From: Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org>

Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 4:53:07 PM

To: Geoffrey Wood <gwood@mtdesert.org>; jpbmacauley3@gmail.com <jbmacauley3@gmail.com>; Martha Dudman
<martha.dudman@gmail.com>; Matt Hart <matt@theneighborhoodhouse.com>

Cc: Jake Wright <financedirector@mtdesert.org>

Subject: UPDATED: Warrant AP#2169 & PR#2128 Approval Request

Good evening,
Please re-approve as this is an updated email with accurate totals listed in it.

Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T) (207) 276-3232 (F)

From: Lisa Young

Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 4:47 PM

To: Geoffrey Wood <gwood@mtdesert.org>; John Macauley <jbmacauley3@gmail.com>; Martha Dudman
<martha.dudman@gmail.com>; Matt Hart <matt@theneighborhoodhouse.com>

Cc: Jake Wright <financedirector@mtdesert.org>

Subject: Warrant AP#2169 & PR#2128 Approval Request

Good Evening!
Attached are the following warrants for approval:

Accounts Payable #2169 total of $12,903.06
Payroll #2128 total of $116,226.49



Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving or rejecting.

I will “will reply to ali” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the one required email
approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,
IFimance Clerk, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T) (207) 276-3232 (F)



pooM A A31)4039 uewuiey) A ‘UeH [ maynen

uewpnq | eyuen ueuwuiey) ‘Asjnedei g uyor

:Uawld9|es

*3|NP3YIS SIY} ul paweu
saijied ayy oiun Aed 03 paldauip aJe noA pue aweu yoes jsuiede 13s wns 3y}
anoge paisy suonendosdde ayy 01 ajgeasdieyd pue anp si 313y} 1yl Aj1432 01 SI SIyL

SLYYE'E $ :SINIW3ISYNESIA TVLOL
SYI3YD PapIoA - ) V/N ysnosyy V/N “H3IGNNN XD 10 143
sjuawAhed HOY - $ V/N y3nosyy V/N *43IGNNN 143
sjuawAed J1uosI9|3 - $ V/N ysnoayy V/N “YIGWNN XDIHD
sjuawAed Y23yD SLYYE'E ) OTISTE ysnosy OTTSTE HIGNNN MD3IHD
120Z ‘9T 3unf :31vAd XO3HD

0L1¢ #dV LINVHYHVM

ANVYYVM 318VAVd SLNNOJDV ¥d '8 ILVIS ‘ANE
143S3d INNOW 40 NMOL



Lisa Young

From: John Macauley <jbmacauley3@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 12:19 PM

To: Lisa Young

Cc: Geoffrey Wood; Jake Wright; Martha Dudman; Matt Hart
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2170 State Fees/Payroll Benefits

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Yes, | approve.

On Tue, Jun 15, 2021 at 11:14 AM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

Good Morning!

Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2170 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount of $3,344.75 for your
approval.

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or rejecting.

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the one required email approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,

Finance Clerk, Tax Collector



Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T) (207) 276-3232 (F)

John B Macauley, Ph.D. P.O. Box 172 Seal Harbor, Maine 04675





